Elegant

Marbles & Grani Industries Llimited
Manufacturers A Exporters A Importers

June 28, 2024

To,

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejecbhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001.

Scrip Code: 526705

Sub:  Notice of the Thirty Nineth Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the F.Y. 2023-24
Ref.:  Disclosure under Regulation 34(1) and Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations)

Dear Sir/Madam,

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) and Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed Notice convening Thirty Nineth Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) along with the Annual Report of the Company for FY 2023-24.

The 39" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the Company is scheduled to be held on
Tuesday, July 23, 2024 at 09.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at E 7/9, RIICO
Industrial Area, Abu Road — 307 026, Rajasthan to transact the businesses as set forth in the Notice
of the AGM.

The said Annual Report FY 2023-24 and Notice of AGM is being sent through electronic mode to the
shareholders of the Company and is also available on the website of the Company at
https://www.elegantmarbles.com/.

Kindly take the above information on your record.
Thanking You,

Yours Sincerely,
For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

POOJA Digitally signed by POOJA

DHARMENDRA PONDA
DHARMENDRA Date: 2024.06.28 15:45:10
PONDA +05'30'

Pooja Ponda
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Encl: As above

The Galleries
Elegant House, Raghuvanshi Mills Compound, S. B. Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai - 1
T: (91-22) 2493 9676, 2491 1144 F: (91-22) 2493 0782

Plot No 2099, Western Express Highway, Vile Parle (E), Mumbai - 99.
The Gemstone Collections Telfax: (91-22) 2610 9871, 2615 0120
Works & Registered Office
E-7, 8, 9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road, District Sirohi 307026, Rajasthan - India.
The Tile Boutique Culinary Delights T: (91-2974) 294792

E: elegantmarbles@gmail.com www.elegantmarbles.com CIN: L14101RJ1984PLC003134

Searlet

Marble Masterpieces

C


https://www.elegantmarbles.com/

| | legant

Marbles & Grani IndWstries Ltd




CORE VALUES OF ELLEGAN'T

E xcellence: We strive for excellence in everything we do, setting high
standards and continuously improving.

L eadership: We lead by example, inspiring our team and industry with
innovative and ethical practices.

E mpathy: We empathize with our customers, colleagues, and
communities, ensuring that we understand and address their needs.

G rowth: We are committed to the growth of our employees, our company,

and our stakeholders, fostering an environment of continuous learning
and development.

A ccountability: We take responsibility for our actions and decisions,
ensuring transparency and trust in all our dealings.

N urturing: We nurture a positive and inclusive workplace, where every

team member is valued and empowered to contribute to their fullest
potential.

T rust: We build trust through reliability, honesty, and a steadfast
commitment to our promises.

These core values define ELEGANT's commitment to excellence, leadership,
empathy, growth, accountability, nurturing, and trust, ensuring that we uphold
the highest standards in all our actions.



In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated
October 07, 2023 read with MCA General 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, compliance
norms pertaining to requirement of sending physical copies of Annual Reports to
Shareholders for General Meeting to be held up-to September 30, 2023 has been
dispensed off. In view of the above the Company will not be printing physical copies of the
Annual Report.

The Annual Report and Notice of the AGM is being sent to members who have registered
their email ID with the Company / Depositories. The Members who have not registered their
email ID with the Company can access the Annual Report on the website of the Company
www.elegantmarbles.com. Members who would like to obtain hard copy may write an email
to companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
2023-24

CELEBRATING 39 YEARS OF GLORIOUS EXISTENCE

TURNOVER Rs. 3,422.42 Lakhs

NET PROFIT Rs. 405.21 Lakhs

EPS Rs. 11.42




Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

THE MANAGING DIRECTOR'S COMMUNIQUE

Dear Shareholders,

| am honored to present to you the Annual Report of
Elegant Marbles & Grani Industries Limited for the
Financial Year 2023-2024.

I'm delighted to inform you that Elegant Marbles & Grani
Industries Limited has achieved steady progress over the
past year, successfully advancing in its transformational
journey to establish itself as a key player in the Marble
Segment. Our surplus retained earnings have been =
strategically invested in equity markets. These '3_
investments have yielded favorable returns, driven by the =
current booming economy and the subsequent rise in |
stock prices. This strategic allocation of funds has |
significantly contributed to the growth in our income from |
investments, enhancing overall financial stability and
shareholder value. Our performance across key metrics
has been commendable, with double-digit revenue growth
and an impressive 38% increase in EPS during the
Financial Year 2023-24.

In an ever-evolving world, the ability to sustain relevance
for nearly four decades is a remarkable feat for any
organization. What truly energizes us is Elegant Marbles'
consistent position as the preferred partner for our valued |
clients. :

Your Company has actively pursued growth-oriented
strategies and diligently reinforced its organizational
capacities. Throughout the year, we've made substantial
headway in fortifying our core operations and broadening
our market footprint. | extend my heartfelt appreciation to
our esteemed clients for their steadfast trust and
confidence in us, which has been fundamental in
sustaining our continued patronage and fostering enduring
partnerships.

I'd like to express my gratitude to our esteemed Board
Members for their invaluable guidance. Additionally, |
extend my heartfelt appreciation for your steadfast support
and the unwavering dedication of our employees, both of which have played a pivotal role in the Company's consistent
progress. Your partnership is highly valued, and we eagerly anticipate achieving new milestones together as we continue
on this journey.

RAKESH AGRAWAL
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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IN CONSTANT PURSUIT OF ELEGANCE

Marble has always been a go to choice ensuring elegance and sophistication. Varying in color,
texture and visible sophistication, Marble has an incomparable resistance, ideal to be used in
luxury properties that requires high-end finishes.
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MARBLE IN DECOR

Silver Portoro used to create a Luxury Statuario used to create a Chic style
Bathroom Vibe. Bathroom Space

Bianco Dalmata used to create a modern Statuario with a hint of lilac for a serene
style divider. & elegant look for the kitchen counter.
A
el
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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(Appointment w.e.f. April 01, 2024)
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Shri Hitesh Kothari

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pooja Ponda
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Chartered Accountants

601, 6" Floor, A Wing, Aurus Chamber,

S.S. Amrutwar Marg, Behind Mahindra Tower,
Worli, Mumbai - 400 013

INTERNAL AUDITORS

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Shri Virendra G. Bhatt
Practicing Company Secretary
Office No. 3, A Wing, 9th Floor,
Pinnacle Corporate Park, BKC,
Bandra (E), Mumbai-400 051.

BANKERS

* ICICI Bank Limited

* HDFC Bank Limited

+ Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
+ State Bank of India
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E 7/9, RIICO Industrial Area,
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CIN : L14101RJ1984PLC003134
Email: elegantmarbles@gmail.com
Website: www.clegantmarbles.com
Telefax: 022-2493 0782

CORPORATE OFFICE

Elegant House,

Raghuvanshi Mills Compound,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai - 400 013.

Tel.: 022-2493 9676

E-mail: elegantmarbles@gmail.com
Website: www.elegantmarbles.com

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

M/s. Deepak Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

A/202-203, Mahendra Apartment,
Kulupwadi Road, Before Raheja Estate,
Borivali (East), Mumbai - 400 066.

Link Intime India Private Limited,

C 101, 247 Park, LBS Road, Vikhroli West, Mumbai — 400083.
Tel: 022-4918 6000 Fax: 022-4918 6060

E-mail: mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

CIN: U67190MH1999PTC118368
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty-Ninth Annual General Meeting of Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited (“the
Company”) will be held on Tuesday, July 23, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at E 7/9, RIICO
Industrial Area, AbuRoad—307 026, Rajasthan to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

ADOPTION OF FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

To declare a Final Dividend of Rs. 2.75/- (27.5%) per share on fully paid Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31,2024.

APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAKESH AGRAWAL AS A DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION, AND BEING
ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rakesh Agrawal (DIN: 00017951), who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

APPOINTMENT OF M/S. JD PAWAR & ASSOCIATES, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (FIRM REGISTRATION NO.:
141721W) AS STATUTORY AUDITORS AND FIXING THEIR REMUNERATION FOR AN INITIAL TERM OF FIVE
YEARS.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, M/s. JD Pawar &
Associates Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 141721W) be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company in place of the retiring Statutory Auditors M/s. SDBA & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN 142004 W) for an initial tem of
five consecutive years and who shall hold office from the conclusion of this 39th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 44th
Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2028-29.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and are hereby authorized to fix such remuneration and the
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, if any as may be determined by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such necessary acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

Pooja Ponda
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Date: May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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NOTES:

1.

10.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in the Meeting instead of
himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective must be signed and scanned in portable document format and deposited by the email to
the Registrar and transfer agent viz. rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in and marking a copy to the Company on companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com,
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting viz. up to 09:00 a.m. on July 21, 2024. Members/ proxies should bring their duly filled
attendance slip attached herewith to attend the meeting.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company. A proxy form is annexed to this Report. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable.

Institutional shareholders/corporate sharcholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF’s, NRI’s, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG
Format) of their respective Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf
atthe meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent on companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com.

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rakesh Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company, retires by rotation at
the Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Directors of the Company recommends his re-appointment.

Mr. Rakesh Agrawal is interested in the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 03 of the Notice with regard to his Re-appointment. The relatives of
Mr. Rakesh Agrawal may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No 03 of the Notice, to the extent of their Shareholding interest, if
any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Ordinary Business set out under Item No. 03 of the Notice.

Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 permits service of documents on Members by a Company through electronic mode. So, in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder, the Annual Report for the year 2023-24 is being sent through electronic mode to those
members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant.

Members are requested to note that SEBI vide Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 read with MCA
General Circular no. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, compliance norms pertaining to requirement of sending physical copies of annual reports to
shareholders for general meeting to be held up-to September 30, 2024 has been dispensed off. In view of the above the Company will not be printing
physical copies of the Annual Report.

The Annual Report and Notice of the AGM is being sent to members who have registered their email ID with the Company / Depositories. The
Members who have not registered their email ID with the Company can access the Annual Report on the website of the Company
www.elegantmarbles.com and website of the Stock Exchange, BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. Members who would like to obtain pdf copy on
their email ID may write an email to companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com.

To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not registered their email addresses are requested to register the same with the Company’s
Share Registrars and Transfer Agents/ their Depository Participants, in respect of shares held in physical/ electronic mode respectively.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit a self-attested copy of their Permanent Account Number (PAN) card and Original
Cancelled Cheque leaf/ attested bank passbook showing name of the account holder to the Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent, as mandated by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2023/181 dated November 17,2023

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent
Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number,
MICR code, IFSC code, etc:

For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Participants (Dps)

For shares held in physical form: to the Company/RTA in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/SECFATEF/P/ CIR/2023/169 dated October 12, 2023. To mitigate unintended challenges on account of freezing of folios, SEBI
vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/ CIR/2023/181 dated November 17,2023, has done away with the provision regarding freezing of
folios not having PAN, KYC, and Nomination details.

Members may please note that SEBI vide Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the
listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim
from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate;
consolidation of securities certificates/folios.

Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR —4, the format of which is available on
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the Company’s website at https://elegantmarbles.com/pages/investor-relations or from the website of the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents,
Link Intime India Private Limited (“Company’s RTA”) at www.linkintime.co.in. It may be noted that any service request can be processed only after
the folio is KYC Compliant.

11.  SEBIvide notification has mandated that all requests for transfer of securities shall be processed only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and
to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization. Members are advised to dematerialise the shares
held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s RTA, for assistance in this regard.

12.  Asper the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members in
respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No.
SH-13. Ifa member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/ she may submit the same in Form ISR-3 or
SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded from the Company’s website www.elegantmarbles.com Members are requested to
submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to Company’s RTA in case the shares are held in
physical form.

13.  The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, July 17, 2024 to Tuesday, July 23, 2024
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM and for determining entitlement of Members to final dividend for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, ifapproved at the AGM.

14.  The Dividend of Rs. 2.75/- per Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each (27.5%), as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the AGM, will be
subject to deduction of tax at source will be made within thirty daysi.e., upto August 21, 2024 as under:

- To all the Beneficial Owners in respect of Shares held in dematerialized Form as per the data as may be made available by the National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited, collectively referred to as “Depositories” as at end of
the day on Tuesday, July 16,2024.

- To all the Members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid transmission or transposition requests lodged with the
Company as of the close of business hours on Tuesday, July 16,2024.

Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020 and the Company is required to
deduct tax at source from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed rates as per Income Tax Act, 1961. For the prescribed rates for various
categories, please refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and the amendments thereof. The shareholders are requested to update their valid PAN with the DPs
(if shares held in dematerialized form) and the Company/Company’s RTA (if shares are held in physical form).

15.  AResident individual Shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay Income Tax can submit a yearly declaration in Form No. 15G/15H, to avail
the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by e-mail to companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com by 11:59 p.m. IST on, July 15,2024,

16.  Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not registered, or having invalid PAN or Specified Person as defined under section 206AB
ofthe Income-tax Act (“the Act”), the tax will be deducted at a higher rate prescribed under section 206 AA or 206AB of the Act, as applicable.

17. Non-resident shareholders [including Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs)/Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)] can avail beneficial rates under tax
treaty between India and their country of tax residence, subject to providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which may be required to avail the tax treaty benefits. For this
purpose the shareholder may submit the above documents (PDF/JPG Format) by e-mail to companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com. The aforesaid
declarations and documents need to be submitted by the shareholders by 11:59 p.m. IST on, July 15,2024;

18.  Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed for a period of 7 years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the
Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).. The Members whose unclaimed dividends/Shares have
been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by an application to the IEPF Authority, in Form no. IEPF-5, which is available on www.iepf.gov.in For
details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report which is a part of this Annual Report and the investor page on the Company’s website
www.elegantmarbles.com The said details have also been uploaded on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the same can be accessed
through the link www.iepf.gov.in.

19. Incaseofjointholders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

20. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Statement are open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the
Company during business hours on all working days, up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

21.  Members desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 10 days before the meeting so as to enable
the management to keep the information available at the meeting.

22.  Aroute map giving directions to reach the venue of the 39th Annual General Meeting is given at the end of the Notice.

23.  The voting rights of the shareholders for voting through remote e-voting or by Poll paper at the AGM shall be in proportion to their share of the paid-
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24.

25.

26.

up equity share capital of the Company as on Tuesday, July 16, 2024; (‘Cut-Off Date’). A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members
or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-
voting or of voting at the AGM and who is not a Member as on the cut-oft date shall treat this Notice for information purposes only. Person acquiring
shares after dispatch of this notice but holds shares as on cut-off date can generate the password as per instructions stated in notice or seek assistance
from CDSL via writing e-mail on helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

24.  Shri. Parbat Chaudhari, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. ACS 57826) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. The Chairman shall forthwith on receipt of the Scrutinizer’s Report, declare the result of the e-
voting. The Results declared, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall be placed on the Company’s website www.elegantmarbles.com and on the
website of CDSL immediately after their declaration, and communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed, viz.
BSE Limited.

Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the AGM Notice shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the
AGM,i.e. July23,2024.

Voting through electronic means:

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 read with
amendments or re-enactments made thereunder and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 the Company is pleased to provide the facility to exercise members’ right to vote at the 39th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic
means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL):

The facility for voting through ballot/polling paper shall also be made available at the venue of the 39th Annual General Meeting. The Members
attending the Meeting, who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights at the meeting. The
members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the
AGM.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING:

Step 1
Step2 :

@

(i1)
(iii)

(iv)

Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

The voting period begins on Friday, July 19, 2024 and ends on Monday, July 22, 2024. During this period, shareholders of the Company
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Tuesday, July 16, , 2024 may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat
account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat
account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication
but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual ~shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting
facility.
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Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given

below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL
Depository

1)

2)

3)

4)

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users
to login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New
System Myeasi Tab.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies
where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option,
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No.
from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of'all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL
Depository

1)

2)

3)

1)  If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL.
Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or
on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.
“Register online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their Depository
Participants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at

abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depositoryi.e., CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
Demat mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shar.eholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
Demat mode with NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v)  Loginmethod for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.
1)  Theshareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2)  Click on “Shareholders” module.
3)  Nowenteryour User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4)  Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5)  Ifyouareholding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then
your existing password is to be used.
6)  Ifyouarea first-time user follow the steps given below:
For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as
well as physical shareholders).
e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.
Dividend Bank Details E;fr ;lI:e ]r?elc\g;i;sn;in]iigl;l?stlzglsi I:)r Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in the
OR Date of Birth (DOB) pany gt
e Ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field.

((vi) Afterentering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat
form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly
note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(viii) Forshareholdersholding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click onthe EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(x)  Onthe voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or
NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click onthe “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” ifyou wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your
vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Onceyou “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) Youcanalso take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv) Ifademat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password &
enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) Thereis also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for verification.
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(xvii) Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.
° Non-Individual sharecholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

° A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

° After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would
be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

° Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at
the email address viz; companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front
and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA
email id.

2. ForDemat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is
mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 180022 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central
Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at toll free no. 180022 55 33.

27.  Thefacility for voting, through polling paper shall also be made available at the AGM and the Members attending the meeting who have not already
cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the AGM.

28.  The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital in the Company as on the cut-off date i.e.
Tuesday, July 16,2024.

29. MEMBERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM, AND PROXIES THEREOF, ARE REQUESTED TO BRING
THEIRDPID AND CLIENT ID FORIDENTIFICATION.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

Pooja Ponda

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai

REGISTERED OFFICE
E 7/9, RIICO Industrial Area,

Abu Road - 307 026, Rajasthan.
CIN : L14101RJ1984PLC003134
Email: elegantmarbles@gmail.com
Website: www.clegantmarbles.com
Telefax: 022-2493 0782
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Details of Directors Retiring by Rotation/ seeking Re-Appointment at the 39" Annual General Meeting.

Particulars Mr. Rakesh Agrawal

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00017951

Designation/category of the Director Managing Director

Date of Birth (Age) 15th January 1965 (59 years)

Nationality Indian

Qualification Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Mumbai, India.
Expertise Shri Rakesh Agrawal, is one of the Promoters of the Company and has

been on the Board of the Company since inception and has
commendable experience in the field of marketing. He is involved in
the marketing and sales operations of the Company.

Date of Appointment on the Board 01" September, 2023

Relationship with other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Brother of Mr. Rajesh Agrawal, Father of Ms. Yogita Agrawal and
Director / Key Managerial Personnel not related to any other Director / Key Managerial Personnel

No. of shares held in the Company 7,01,869

Directorships held in other Companies (excluding foreign Companies and He is a Director in the following Companies:
Section 8 Companies) as on 31st March, 2024. 1.Madhu Holdings Private Limited
2.Midaspace Private Limited

Memberships /Chairmanships of committees of other public companies
(includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship NIL
Committee) as on 31st March, 2024.

Memberships / Chairmanships of the Committee of the Board of Directors| Member of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of the

of the Company Company

Note: For other details such as number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year, remuneration drawn and relationship with other Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel in respect of the above Director please refer to the Board's Report and the Corporate Governance Report.
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Route Map to the venue of the Annual General Meeting
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

Pooja Ponda
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office:

E7/9, RIICO Industrial Area,
AbuRoad-307026 Rajasthan

Tel: 022-2496 0771 Fax: 91-22-24930782
E-mail: elegantmarbles@gmail.com

Website: www.clegantmarbles.com
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors are delighted to present the Thirty Nineth Annual Report on the business and operations of Elegant Marbles & Grani Industries
Limited (the “Company”) together with the summary of Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.This report states
compliance as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™) and other rules and regulations as applicable to the Company.

1. FINANCIALSUMMARY/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The summary of Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended March 31,2024 is summarized below:

(T in lakhs)
Sr. Particulars FY. FY.
No. 2023-2024 2022-2023
1 Revenue from Operations 3,422.42 3,564.86
2 Other Income 258.37 219.95
3 Total Income 3,680.79 3,784.81
4 Profit/ Loss Before Tax 545.66 421.98
5 Less: Current Tax 136.08 117.72
6 | Deferred Tax 4.37 0.40
7 | Excess/(Short) Provision of previous years - -
8 | Profit/ Loss After Tax 405.21 303.86
9 | Other Comprehensive Income 6,262.91 (157.22)
10 | Total Comprehensive Income For The Year 5,761.72 146.64

In F.Y. 2023-24, the Company bettered its performance as its profit increased to 405.21 lakhs as against 303.86 lakhs in F.Y. 2022-23. The growth
was propelled by a surge in demand from the residential and commercial segment.

2.  STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company's income from operations during the year under review is Rs. 3,422.42 lakhs as compared to INR Rs. 3,564.86 Lakhs in the previous
year. The total Profit during the year under review is Rs. 405.21 lakhs as against Rs. 303.86 Lakhs during the previous year.

During the period under consideration, the revenue from operations was incredible.
Detailed analysis and future outlook of the Company’s business are dealt in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.
3. DIVIDEND

Considering the consistent financial performance of your Company and promising future prospects, the Board of Directors are pleased to
recommend a Final Dividend of Rs. 2.75/- per equity share (27.50% per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs.10/- each) for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2024 at its Meeting held on May 29, 2024. The said Final Dividend is subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) scheduled to be held on Tuesday, July 23, 2024. If approved, the dividend would result in a cash outflow
of Rs. 81.49 Lakhs.

The dividend once approved by the Shareholders will be paid before August21,2024.
4. BOOKCLOSURE

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, July 17, 2024 to Tuesday, July 23, 2024
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM and for determining entitlement of Members to final dividend for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, ifapproved at the AGM.

Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020 and the Company is required to
deduct tax at source from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed rates as per Income Tax Act, 1961.

5. TRANSFERTO RESERVES

As permitted under the Act, The Board of Directors of the Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the General Reserve and has decided
to retain the entire amount of profit for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 in the profitand loss account.
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7.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, there have been changes in Share Capital as under:

There has been an Inter promoter transfer of an aggregate of 50,000 Equity Shares of the Company on September 25, 2023. 25,000 Equity Shares of
the Company have been transferred from Mr. Rajesh Agrawal to Mrs. Alka Rajesh Agrawal & 25,000 Equity Shares of the Company are transferred
from Mr. Rakesh Agrawal to Mrs. Divya Rakesh Agrawal. The transfer is amongst members of the promoter/promoter group who are also immediate
relatives, in the nature of gift for nil consideration. All applicable Compliances have been in this regard. The aggregate shareholding of Promoter and
Promoter Group before and after the aforesaid inter-se Transfer remains same.

6,97,000 Equity Shares of the Company have been bought back, such buyback has been approved by the Board of Directors on November 11, 2023
and Shareholders by means of Postal Ballot special resolution on December 22,2023, for cash at a price of Rs. 385/- per shares, by tender offer route —
Stock Exchange Mechanism. The extinguishment of 6,97,000 (Six Lakhs Ninety Seven Thousand) Equity Shares accepted under the Buyback, has
been completed on February 02, 2024. Post Buyback Share Capital is Rs. 2,96,30,000.

Further, the shareholding of the Promoters is in compliance with the permissible limits as per Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and
minimum public shareholding requirements as specified in Rule 19 (2) and Rule 19A of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 was 22,96,30,000 comprising 0f29,63,000 equity shares of 210 each.
The promoters holding as on March 31, 2024 is as below:

Shares held by Promoters as on March 31, 2024
No of Shares % of holding | % of change
Name of the Promoters of equity during
31-03-2023 | Change | 31-03-2024 shares the year
Shri Rajesh Agrawal 8,90,473 (1,91,010) 6,99,463 23.61% 5.22%
Shri Rakesh Agrawal 8,93,273 (1,91,404) 7,01,869 23.69% 5.23%
Smt. Alka Agrawal 4,21,745 (63,476) 3,58,269 12.09% 1.73%
Smt. Divya Agrawal 4,03,345 (60,890) 3,42,455 11.56% 1.66%
Smt. Gita Agrawal 0 - 0 0% 0
Smt. Indu Sachin Sanghi 15,600 (3,126) 12,474 0.42% 0.09%
TOTAL 26,24,436 (5,09,906) 21,14,530 71.36% 13.93%
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company continues to maintain its reputation as one of the most reputed manufacturers & providers of choicest and exclusive range of Indian &
Imported Marbles & Granites. The Company is reaping rich dividends on its carefully cultivated long-term relationships with several niche clients in
India & abroad. The Company has strived to innovate in technology and marketing and has evolved accepting the changing customer demands and
aspirations.

The Company is constantly improving its efforts on marketing its products through e-commerce on its website thereby keeping itself abreast with the
latest trends in marketing and accepting the changing customer demands and aspirations. Online marketing is expected to assist the Company to
strive in the world of e-commerce keeping watch on customers buying habits, expansion of market for niche products, Inventory Management and
various other benefits thereby targeting the untapped online market in order to enhance the top line and revenue by achieving economies of scale.

Aggressive marketing and rational utilization of resources by the Management of the Company has been an ongoing process as usual.

The Company has visualized many uncharted territories in terms of creating a better future for itself in terms of new products and a wider range of
colors and the Company is well positioned to capture benefits of the upturn.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

The Company believes nurturing and maintaining the relationships with existing clients is as important as adding new names to its clientele. The
Company has been exploring repeated orders with its existing clients and continues its efforts to widen its client base both geographically and
numerically and hopes to further expand it with the introduction of e-commerce facility on its website in the coming years.

The Company has also gained and maintained reputation for importing and distributing only the highest quality material while providing clients with
personalized, detailed attention in selecting the right material for their projects.

Personnel & Performance

The Company has been able to develop an environment, which is conducive to high growth and performance, a work culture that encourages
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meritocracy and rewards high performers in an adequate and fair manner.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, in terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”), is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY AND COMMITMENT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the Financial Year and
date of this Report. There has been no change in the nature of Business of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE
GOING CONCERN STATUSAND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS INFUTURE.

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required under Section 134
(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure A and is attached to this
report.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a Risk Management Policy in place, pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. This robust Risk Management
framework enables identification and evaluation of business risks and opportunities, seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on
business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage.

The Company has laid down a well-defined risk management mechanism commensurate with its size and the nature of business covering risk
mapping, risk exposure and risk mitigation process. The Company’s Risk Management Policy has been developed to include various categories such
as Human Resources, Financial, Business Processes and Systems, Strategy, Corporate Governance and Compliance and Information Security.
Further, the Board ensures risk reporting and updates, risk policy compliances and provide overall guidance and support to business risk owners.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
INITIATIVES

The expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the company for the financial year 2023-24 in accordance with Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not given Loans or guarantees pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to other Body Corporates or persons as
indicated in the notes to the financial statements. The details of investments are provided in Notes to Financial Statements under Note No. 03.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTSAND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company did not enter into any contract/ arrangement/ transaction with related parties,
which could be considered material in accordance with Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has also disclosed related party transactions on a consolidated basis for the year ended March 31, 2024 to the stock exchange and has
also published the same on the website of the Company.

The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the
Company’s website www.elegantmarbles.com.
There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large and thus a disclosure in Form AOC-2 in terms of
Section 134 of the Act is not required. However, the particulars as required under the Act are furnished in Annexure B (Form No. AOC-2) as a Nil
disclosure to this Report.
AUDITORSAND AUDITORS REPORT
a. Statutory Auditors & Auditor’s Report
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, M/s. SDBA & Co., Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 142004W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, to hold office
from the conclusion of the 34th Annual General Meeting held on 25th July, 2019 until the conclusion of 39th Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held in the calendar year 2024, The Audit Committee and the Board has proposed to recommend to appoint M/s. JD Pawar &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 141721W) in place of existing Statutory Auditors M/s. SDBA & Co.,
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21.

22,

23

Chartered Accountants on account of completion of their term as Statutory Auditors of the Company for an initial term of five consecutive
years subject to approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
M/s. JD Pawar & Associates, Chartered Accountants have given a letter to the Company consenting their proposed appointment as Statutory
Auditors and have given a certificate that their appointment shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 139(1) and 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013, The Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditor’s Report does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

b.  Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report
The Board appointed Shri Virendra G. Bhatt, Practising Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2023-24 as
mandated under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 there-under. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended
March 31,2024 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure C to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.
COSTAUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company
is not required to maintain cost records and conduct cost audit.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure D.

POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’APPOINTMENTAND REMUNERATION

The Board has framed a Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors’ qualifications, positive
attributes, Independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The details of this Policy have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report,
which forms part of this Report.

ANNUALEVALUATION OF BOARD’S PERFORMANCE, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUALDIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of the
working of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as evaluation of its Committees.

The Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of Individual Directors, the Board as a whole, Committees of
the Board and Chairman and Managing Director after taking into consideration feedback received from Directors. The evaluation was done on
various parameters such as vision and strategy, participation, disclosures of interests, good governance, leadership skills, operations, business
development, human resources development, corporate communication etc. The feedback received from Directors were then consolidated and
placed before the Committee / Board for its evaluation. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

ANNUALRETURN

As required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to place a copy of Annual Return (in Form MGT-7) on the Company’s website, web link of
such annual return shall be disclosed in the Board’s Report. viz. www.elegantmarbles.com. By virtue of amendment to Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to provide extract of Annual Return (Form MGT-9) as part of the Board’s report.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2023-24, 5 (five) Board Meetings were held on May 25,2023; August 10, 2023; November 11,2023, February 12,2024 and
March 29, 2024 with gap between Meetings not exceeding the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Board and Committee Meetings held during the year are given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of the Annual Report. Board
meeting dates are finalised in consultation with all directors and agenda papers backed up by comprehensive notes and detailed background
information are circulated well in advance before the date of the meeting thereby enabling the Board to take informed decisions. In accordance with
the provisions of Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI LODR Regulations”), a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on March 29, 2024 to review the
performance of Non-Independent Directors (including the Chairperson) and the entire Board.

The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management and the Board.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors compries the following Committees:

a. Audit Committee

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

c. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The details of the Committees along with their composition, number of meetings held and attendance at the meetings are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(3)© read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, in respect of the year
ended March 31,2024, hereby confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this

Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the Directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f. The Directors, had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate company. Hence, disclosure of statement containing salient features of the
Financial Statements of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 is not applicable to the Company.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM

The Company has entered into agreement with the National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
to enable shareholders to hold shares in a dematerialized form. The Company also offers simultaneous dematerialization of the physical shares
lodged for transfer.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 164(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has received disclosures in Form DIR — 8 from all the Directors’ of the Company and has noted that the none of the Director is
disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
a. DIRECTORS
The Board of the Company is comprised of eminent persons with proven competence and integrity.

Besides the experience, strong financial acumen, strategic astuteness, and leadership qualities, they have a significant degree of commitment
towards the Company and devote adequate time to the meetings and preparation.

As on the date of the report, the Board comprises, 3 Independent, 1 Non-Executive and 2 Executive Directors, details thereof have been
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

In terms of the requirement of the Listing Regulations, the Board has identified core skills, expertise, and competencies of the Directors in the
context of the Company’s businesses for effective functioning. The list of key skills, expertise and core competencies of the Board of Directors
isdetailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

In the opinion of the Board, all the directors, as well as the directors appointed during the year possess the requisite qualifications, experience
and expertise and hold high standards of integrity.

Two Independent Directors have been appointed by an approval of the Shareholders by means of a special resolution passed through Postal
Ballot.
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29.

30.

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Director are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Listing Regulations and are placed on the website of the Company.

APPOINTMENT/RETIREMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
During the year under review, the following changes have been made in the Board of Directors of the Company:

a)  Mr. Raj Kumar Mittal (DIN: 00020255), having successfully completed 2 terms of being associated with the Company in the capacity of an
Independent Director, retired from the position of an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 on account of completion of his tenure. The
Board placed on record its sincere appreciation for the contribution made by him during his tenure.

b)  Mr. Ramchandra Chawla (DIN: 00017992), having successfully completed 2 terms of being associated with the Company in the capacity of an
Independent Director, retire from the position of an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 on account of completion of his tenure. The
Board placed on record its sincere appreciation for the contribution made by him during his tenure.

¢)  Mr Ayush Bagla (DIN: 01211591) has been appointed as an Independent Director, for an initial term of 5 consecutive years commencing from
the date of appointment i.e. April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2029, by approval of the Board of Directors at their Meeting on May 29, 2024 and
Approval of Shareholders by means of Postal Ballot Special resolution dated May 10, 2024.

d)  Mr. Jayesh Dadia (DIN: 00053633) has been appointed as an Independent Director, for an initial term of 5 consecutive years commencing
from the date of appointmenti.e. April 01,2024 to March 31,2029, by approval of the Board of Directors at their Meeting on May 29, 2024 and
Approval of Shareholders by means of Postal Ballot Special resolution dated May 10, 2024.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION

In terms of the provisions Section 149, 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, one-third of such of the Directors as are liable to retire by rotation,
shall retire every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at every AGM. Consequently, Mr. Rakesh Agrawal (DIN:
00017951) Managing Director of the Company, retires at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, seeks reappointment.

A resolution seeking the re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Agrawal forms part of the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting
scheduled to be held on, Tuesday, July 23,2024.

The profile and particulars of experience, attributes and skills of Mr. Rakesh Agrawal have been disclosed in the annexure to the Notice of the
Annual General Meeting.

b. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

- Shri Rajesh Agrawal, Chairman and Managing Director

- Shri Rakesh Agrawal, Managing Director

- Mr. Hitesh Kothari, Chief Financial Officer

- Ms. Pooja Ponda, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

PARTICULARS OFEMPLOYEES

Disclosure with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as “Annexure D” to this Report.

A statement comprising the names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn is not being sent along with this annual report to the Members
of the Company in line with the provisions of Section 136 of the Act. Members who are interested in obtaining these particulars may write to the
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. The aforesaid Annexure is also available for inspection by Members at the Registered
Office of the Company, 21 days before and up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting during the business hours on working days.

In terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
personnel) Rules, 2014, the statement showing the name of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limit specified in the Rules are not
applicable on the Company as during the period, no employee of the Company was drawing salary in excess of the that drawn by the Managing
Director or Whole-time Director.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations to the Company under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013., that they
meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. The Independent
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31.

32.

33.

34.

Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics.

INTERNALFINANCIALCONTROLSYSTEM

The Company continuously evolves in strengthening its internal control processes and has appointed M/s. Deepak Mehta & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, as the Internal Auditor of the Company. The Company has put in place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with its
size and nature of business. These systems provide a reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operational information, complying
with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company and ensuring compliance with corporate policies.

Procedures to ensure conformance with the policies, standards and delegations of authority have been put in place covering all activities. Audit
Committee periodically reviews the performance of Internal Audit System. The Company has a rigorous business planning system to set targets and
parameters for operations which are reviewed with actual performance to ensure timely initiation of corrective action, if required. The Audit
Committee periodically reviews the Internal Control Systems and Internal Audit Reports. Further, the Board annually reviews the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control system.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A detailed Report on Corporate Governance, pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations, forms an integral part of
this Report. A Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, M/s SDBA & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Schedule V (E) of the Listing Regulations, is annexed to this Report and Mr. Virendra Bhatt (Practicing
Company Secretary) issued a certificate with regards to Non-Dis-Qualification of Directors of the Company as per Regulation 34(3) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, is also annexed to this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGILMECHANISM

The Company has an Audit Committee pursuant to the requirements of the Section 177 of the Act read with the rules framed there under and
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details relating to the same are given in the
Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Report.

During the Financial year 2023-24, the recommendations of the Audit Committee were duly approved and accepted by the Board of Directors.

The Business Responsibility Reporting, as required by Regulation 34(2) of the Listing Regulations, is not applicable to the Company for the
Financial Year ending March 31, 2024. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved and adopted a Whistle Blower Policy of the Company
for establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns regarding fraud or unethical behaviour as required under
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In appropriate cases any personnel of the
Company can have direct access to the audit committee. We affirm that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle
Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company at www.elegantmarbles.com

GENERAL

The Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these items during the
year:

> Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

> Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
> Issue of sweat equity shares, bonus shares or employees stock option plan.
>

The Company has constituted Anti Sexual Harassment Committee and during the year under review, there were no cases were reported
pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

> There were no frauds reported by the Auditors under Sub section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies in (Amendment) Act, 2015, to the Audit
Committee, Board of Directors or Central Government.

The Company has complied with applicable laws, listing regulations and Secretarial Standards.

Details of application made on any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
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35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Company will soon complete glorious 39 eventful years of the existence. Very few brands continue to remain relevant and become iconic over
such a long passage of time. The Directors are proud of the rich heritage. The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation, for the contribution
made by the employees at all levels but for whose hard work, and support, the Company’s achievements would not have been possible.

The Directors also wish to thank its customers, dealers, agents, suppliers, investors and bankers for their continued support and faith reposed in the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Rajesh Agrawal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00017931

Date: May 29,2024

Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Statement pursuant to Section 134 (1) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A.  Conservation of Energy

The Company does not belong to the category of power intensive industry and hence consumption of power is not significant. However, the management
gives due importance to conservation of energy wherever feasible, and also reviews from time to time, the measures taken / to be taken for reduced and
prudent consumption and conservation of energy.

B. Technology Absorption, Research & Development
i. Research & Development (R & D)

The Company undertakes from time to time, studies for process improvement and plant design development, to improve quality and performance of its
products, to substitute imported material and components and to economise the production costs. Based on these studies, appropriate actions are taken to
achieve these goals. In absence of a separate research & development department, it is difficult to quantify the amount spent on research & development.

ii. Technology Absorption, Adaption and Innovation

Efforts are made to absorb the advances in technology with suitable modifications to cater to local needs. The Company keeps itself updated withthe la t e s t
technological innovations by way of constant communication, personal discussions etc.

C.  Foreign Exchange Used
Foreign exchange used during the year: Rs 960.76/- Lakhs
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Rajesh Agrawal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00017931
Date: May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE B TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, including arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Rajesh Agrawal
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00017931
Date: May 29, 2024

Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE C TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO.: MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

ursuant to Section of the Companies Act, and Rule No.: 9 of the Companies
[P S 204(1) of the Comp Act, 2013 and Rule No.: 9 of the Comp
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

I have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Elegant
Marbles and Grani Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provides me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited’s statutory registers, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed with the
Registrar of Companies (‘the ROC’), soft copy of the various records sent over mail as provided by the Company and other relevant records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its Officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 (“audit period”), prima
facie complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder:

I'have examined the statutory registers, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed with the ROC and other relevant records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended on 3 1st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

>1) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;

(i1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(1ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

@iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,

Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not Applicable during the audit period,

) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act): -
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

Though the following laws are prescribed in the format of Secretarial Audit Report by the Government, the same were not applicable to the

Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
(©) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Actand dealing with client;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
(vi) I further report that, based on the Compliance Report of various Laws submitted by Department Heads of the Company, [ am of the

opinion that the Company has prima facie proper system to comply with the applicable laws.
(vii) I'have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses and I am of the opinion that the Company has prima facie complied with
the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
During the audit period,  am of the opinion that the Company has prima facie complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.
I further report that:

1. Thave not examined the Financial Statements, Financial books, related financial Acts and Related Party Transactions etc., For these matters, [ rely on
the report of statutory auditors for Financial Statement for the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2024.
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10.

11.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the audit period were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

As per the information provided, the Company has prima facie given adequate notice to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

I'was informed and I observed from the minutes of the Board and Committee Meetings that all the decisions at the Meetings were prima facie carried
outunanimously.

There are prima facie adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

The management is responsible for compliances of all business laws. This responsibility includes maintenance of statutory registers / files required
by the concerned authorities and internal control of the concerned department.

The Company had passed the Special Resolution for the investments pursuant to the Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 up to 200 crores at the

Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 24th September, 2014 however, the resolution does not specify the name of the Company and
investment to be made.

The Company has declare a Final Dividend of Rs. 3.30/- (33%) per share on fully paid equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each of the Company
for the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2023.

The Company has Bought back 6,97,000 fully paid-up equity shares of the Company at a price of Rs. 385/- per equity share as approved by members
through Postal ballot held on 22nd December, 2023.

As per the information provided by the Company, there were inter-se transfers of the shares of the Company between the Promoters in compliance
with the provisions of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

During the audit period, the following changes took place in the constitution of the Board:
a. Mr. Rajesh Agrawal (DIN- 0001793 1) was Re-appointed as the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company pursuant to the provisions

of Sections 178, 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of 3
(three) years with effect from 01st September, 2023 at the Annual General Meeting held on 02nd August, 2023.

b. Mr. Rakesh Agrawal (DIN- 00017951) was Re-appointed as the Managing Director of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections
178, 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of 3 (three) years
with effect from 01st September, 2023 at the Annual General Meeting held on 02nd August, 2023.

c. Mr. Raj Kumar Mittal (DIN: 00020255), having successfully completed 2 terms of being associated with the Company in the capacity of an
Independent Director, retired from the position of an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31,2024 on account of completion of his tenure.

d. Mr. Ramchandra Chawla (DIN: 00017992), having successfully completed 2 terms of being associated with the Company in the capacity of an
Independent Director, shall retire from the position of an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31,2024 on account of completion of his tenure.

e. Mr. Ayush Bagla (DIN: 01211591) has been appointed as an “Additional Director — Independent” of the Company by the Board of Directors in
its Board Meeting held on March 29, 2024 w.e.f. April 01, 2024 and shall hold office for an initial term of 5 consecutive years commencing
from the date of appointment i.e. April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2029, subject to approval of Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting or by means of Postal Ballot, as the case may be, within a period of three months thereof.

f. Mr. Jayesh Dadia (DIN: 00053633) has been appointed as an “Additional Director — Independent” of the Company by the Board of Directors
in its Board Meeting held on March 29, 2024 w.e.f. April 01, 2024 and shall hold office for an initial term of 5 consecutive years commencing
from the date of appointment i.e. April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2029, subject to approval of Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting or by means of Postal Ballot, as the case may be, within a period of three months thereof.

During the audit period, there were no instances of:

i Public/Rights/ Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity etc.;

ii. Issue of equity shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme;

iii.  Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 which would have major bearing on the
Company’s affairs;

iv.  Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction etc.;

vi.  Foreign Technical Collaborations.

I further report that:

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
Secretarial Records based on my audit.
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2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. I believe that the
processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events
etc.

4. Thavenotverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of Company.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of the Management.
My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some Misstatements or
material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Standards.

Date: May 29, 2024 Virendra G. Bhatt

Place: Mumbai Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 1157 / COP No.: 124
Peer Review Cert. No.: 1439/2021

UDIN: A001157F000480163
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II.

I11.

Iv.

VL

ANNEXURE D TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year:

Name of Directors Ratio to median
Shri Rajesh Agrawal — Chairman and Managing Director 18.36
Shri Rakesh Agrawal — Managing Director 18.36

Non-Executive Directors received no remuneration, except sitting fees for attending Board / Committee meetings. The details of sitting fees paid
to Non-Executive Directors is provided in Corporate Governance Report.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, if any, in the financial year:

The remuneration of Mr. Rajesh Agrawal, Chairman & Managing Director and Mr. Rakesh Agrawal Managing Director of the Company increased by
60% during the period under review. There was no increment in the remuneration of Director(s), Chief Financial Officer or the Company Secretary
during the period under review.

The median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2023-24:
The median remuneration of the employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs.2,61,484 /-

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31,2024
59 Employees.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and
its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The Average percentile increase is approx. 50% and there is no change in Managerial Remuneration.
Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the
remuneration paid is as per its remuneration policy. The particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not provided as none of the employees draw salary in
excess of the limits prescribed under the Act. The Report and the Accounts are being sent to the Members excluding the statement containing the
names of top ten Employees in terms of Remuneration drawn. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the details of top ten Employees are open for its
Inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any Shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Rajesh Agrawal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00017931

Date: May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management at Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited is pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis Report which provides
an insight of the Company’s business, Industry structure, developments, outlook, opportunities, concern areas and performance of the Company with
respect to the operations and other relevant information. This Report forms part of the compliance report on Corporate Governance.

Business of the Company

Elegant Marbles began with a simple idea in 1984: that the country deserved nothing less than the best when it came to Marbles and Granites. Looking back
on earlier trends, the Company is pleased of continually delivering high-quality products and services that have consistently exceeded clients' expectations,
allowing us to establish an enviable position throughout time. Since its humble beginnings, Elegant Marbles has grown significantly in terms of quality,
volume, and diversity, constantly striving for the best. Its cutting-edge plant, located on Abu Road in Rajasthan, is capable of handling massive volumes.

Elegant Marbles continues to select a wide and exotic bouquet of marbles and granites in a spectrum of combinations to go well with all combinations and
interiors, and is capable of effortlessly producing two-and-a-half million square feet of superior quality marbles and granite tiles and slabs per year, in
keeping with its motto of nothing but excellence.

A. Economic Overview:

- Global Economy

The country’s remarkable growth rate of 8.4% in the third quarter of the fiscal year 2024 surpassed all expectations, as market analysts had penciled
ina slower growth this quarter, between 6.6% and 7.2%. India’s GDP growth already touched 8.2% year over year (YoY) in the past three quarters.

The growth has taken a fall from 3.4 percent in 2023 to 2.8 percent in 2024, before settling at 3.0 percent in 2024. Advanced economies have seen an
especially pronounced growth slowdown, from 2.7 percent in 2023 to 1.3 percent in 2024. In a plausible alternative scenario with further financial
sector stress, global growth declines to about 2.5 percent in 2023 with advanced economy growth falling below 1 percent. Global headline inflation
in the baseline is set to fall from 8.7 percent in 2023 to 7.0 percent in 2024 on the back of lower commodity prices but underlying (core) inflation is
likely to decline more slowly. Inflation’s return to target is unlikely before 2025 in most cases. (World Economic Outlook 2023). The year saw
geopolitical uncertainty with the prolonged Russia-Ukraine conflict and economic challenges leading to disruptions in the global supply chain and
elevated inflation with increase in commodity and energy prices. This prompted central banks to aggressively tighten their monetary policy, which
further impacted economic activity.

- Indian Economy and Outlook

The World Bank now fears that the ongoing slump in global economic growth will likely result in a “lost decade.” Despite this gloom, many market
analysts believe that this could well be India’s decade. And there are enough reasons and data to back this claim. Recent data revisions by India
suggest the economy has fared better than previously believed despite continuing global uncertainties. The International Monetary Fund (IMF)
expects India to grow by 5.9% in FY 2023-24 and by an average rate of 6.1% over the next five years.

- Government Initiatives

A number of initiatives have been undertaken by the Government of India with the hope of incentivizing real estate purchases. The announcements
made in the Union Budget 2023-2024 will help in creating a thriving atmosphere in the real estate sector. The government continues to prioritize the
affordable housing segment and parallelly looking at ways to strengthen the existing financing systems to provide liquidity to stuck real estate
projects.

B.  Industry Structure and Development:

The expansion of the marble business is intimately linked to the country's real estate market. During the year under review, India’s real estate sector is
witnessing a healthy increase in demand in 2023-24 and this momentum is expected to hold for the rest of the year. From commercial spaces to the
residential market, the overall market outlook is a bright one for the real estate industry.

Buoyed by these factors, the sector made a strong comeback. The growth registered in this year is likely to continue and the year is going to end on a
positive note. The industry is additionally to benefit from a regime of low interest rates, coupled with duty waivers (in some states), realistic property
pricing and attractive offers leading to affordable synergy.

The rapid growth in real estate, combined with government efforts and a shift in consumer attitudes, has aided in increasing demand for marble and
granite.

- Business Overview:

The past couple of years have been a period of intense action and reflection. We have seen a global pandemic, geopolitical tensions, supply chain
disruptions, the rise of cryptocurrency and many other public and private upheavals. As the dust settles, and a clearer picture of the world ahead
emerges, the global pandemic has proven to be period of great opportunity and growth. In the face of widespread change, your company has shown
remarkable resilience and adaptability, coming out stronger than ever, after catastrophic events like the global financial crisis or the pandemic.
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Your Company took an opportunity to create digital platform for promoting sales through digital means. The sales picked momentum in FY 2023-24.

Your Company is one of the renowned Marble and Granite Company in India. The Company is a manufacturer and leading processor and retailer of
premium quality Italian and Exotic marbles, semi-precious gemstones, Quartz Stone Slabs and Granites.

AtElegant, we are committed to deliver “better for you” products maintaining high quality standards. With around thirty years of experience, product
quality and dedication towards customer relationship, the Company has established remarkable brand image in the international market particularly
in North America, Africa and Europe.

Elegant maintains a stringent 3 step quality control system before shipping. This broadly includes shade, dimension and surface finish.
Shade Consistency:
AtElegant, we ensure that a high level of color consistency is maintained across all the shipments by procuring all the material from same mines

Dimensional Accuracy:

The company ensures that the material is strictly manufactured according to dimensions (size and thickness) specified. By using advanced
technology, the Company ensures tight tolerances

Surface Finish:

The Company has more than eight surface finishing options that can be done on marble, ensuring that the surface finish meets the quality
requirements of the project

The Company has a very high production capacity and excellent distribution network across the globe. It is known to process more than 200 colors of
a granite alone. The manufacturing and quarrying activities are performed by hand picking blocks and processing them on gang saws and cutters.

Financial and Operational Performance

The table below gives the Company’s financial performance for FY 2023-24 compared with FY 2022-23:

(I in lakhs

Particulars Financial Year Financial Year

Year 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from Operations 3,422.42 3,564.86
Other Income 258.37 219.95
Total Income 3.680.79 3.784.81
Profit/ Loss Before Tax 545.66 421.98
Less: Current Tax 136.08 117.72
Deferred Tax 4.37 0.40
Excess/(Short) Provision of previous years - -
Profit/ Loss After Tax 405.21 303.86
Other Comprehensive Income 6,262.91 (157.22)
Total Comprehensive Income for The Year 5,761.72 146.64

Segment-Wise or Product-Wise performance

The Company manufactures and deals only in one segment i.e. Marbles and Granites and allied products. The information on performance of the same has
been provided accordingly.

Opportunities and Threats

We are hoping that due to various government measures opportunities will spring up in Marble & Granite industry due to huge investments in
Infrastructure, modern day architecture, interior designing, construction reforms and real estate activities. The constant growth of the Industry is bound to
push up the demand for marbles and granites sizably both in domestic and international markets.

Further, The World is indeed becoming a Global city. Your company believes that niche opportunities exist in the Global arena which we are targeting to
exploit resulting in positive growth. The company has accordingly built a business model tapping these opportunities and is also aligning its strategies to
utilise opportunities in the domestic market. Your company deals in special range of Marble and Granites having exquisite textures, designs and colours for
which the overseas and domestic markets, both are very demanding. Presently, it is one of the few companies which offer all natural stone products under
one roof'to the buyers. The demand for top quality natural stone products is also increasing in the domestic market and the company has setup Retail outlets
at prime location of the country’s financial capital - Mumbai so as to cater to the local demand for quality products. However, the number of natural stone
exporters from India as well as local dealers dealing in imported and other natural stones catering to domestic market are increasing, thus reducing the
margins and making the business competitive. The availability of manufactured stone products as an alternative to natural stones is also likely to affect the
performance of the company.
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The increase in discretionary spending has created a large market and demand for designer residences and the growth in construction sector has escalated the
demand for marbles and granites both in domestic and international markets.

Your Company suspects all risk associated with pandemic as a threat to the smooth functioning of the Company business.

Your Company has the necessary expertise and flexibility to quickly adapt to the changing market condition and capture the growth in sales leading to
growth for the Company.

Threats and Risk Management

Risks are an inherent part of business which cannot be avoided but its robust identification and management can overcome its effects. The Company has in
place a designated Risk Management policy which is designed to overcome adverse Industry fluctuations to successfully flourish the business at a reputable
pace. The Company provides updates on risk management to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company on a regular basis.

A comprehensive and integrated risk management framework forms the basis of all the de-risking efforts of the Company. Formal reporting and control
mechanisms ensure timely information availability and facilitate vigilant and in-time risk management. These mechanisms are designed to cascade down to
the level of the managers so that risks at the transactional level are identified and steps are taken towards mitigation in a decentralised fashion.

The Company thereby follows well—established and detailed risk assessment and minimisation procedures, which are periodically reviewed by the Board.
The Company has laid down a well-defined risk management mechanism covering risk mapping, risk exposure and risk mitigation process.

The decades of experience in this industry is helping us to emerge out as a winner in all such situations.
Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has a sound internal control system, which ensures that (a) its financial reports are reliable, (b) its operations are effective and efficient, and
(c) its activities comply with applicable laws and regulations. The internal control systems are further supplemented by internal audit carried out by an
independent Chartered Accountant and periodical review by the Management. The Internal Audit process is designed to review the adequacy of internal
control checks in the system and covers all the significant areas of the Company’s operations.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems and tracks the implementation of
corrective actions. Significant audit observations and corrective actions taken by the Management are presented to the Audit Committee. To maintain its
objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit reports are submitted to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Audit Committee plays a key role in
providing assurance to the Board of Directors.

Human Resources

Effective Human Resource Management enables employees to contribute effectively and productively to the overall company growth and the
accomplishment of the organization’s goals and objectives. The Human Resource Management of our organization deals with and provides leadership and
advice for dealing with all issues related to the people in the organization. They also help in attaining maximum individual development and desirable
working relationship.

The Company considers it’s Human Resource as the most valuable resource which has to be nurtured well and equipped to meet the challenges posed by the
dynamics of business developments and marketing. The employees are motivated and promoted with good work culture, training, remuneration packages
and ethical values, which the Company maintains. The Board of Directors would like to record their appreciation of the efficient and loyal service rendered
by the Company’s employees.

The Company has in place a Anti Sexual Harassment Committee and there is a policy in place, to address issues pertaining to female employees. The
Company has total of 59 permanent employees as on March 31, 2024.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this management discussion and analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be 'forward
looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or
implied. Important developments that could influence Company's operations include global and domestic financial market conditions affecting the interest
rates, availability of resources for the financial sector, market for lending, changes in regulatory directions issued by the Government, tax laws, economic
situation, significant changes in political and economic environment in India, applicable statues, litigations, labour relations and interest costs and other
unforeseen events, if any.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Rajesh Agrawal
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00017931
Date: May 29,2024
Place: Mumbai
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), as amended, for the year ended March 31, 2024.

1.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Effective Corporate Governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful commercial enterprises are built to last. The
Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behavior and
fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large.

Strong leadership and effective Corporate Governance practices have been the Company’s hallmark since its inception. The Company has a strong
legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. The Company’s Business objective is to grow in such a way as to create value that can be
sustained over the long term for its customers, shareholders and employees.

The Company is conscious of the fact that its success is a reflection of the professionalism, conduct and ethical values of its Management and its
Employees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company have an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors with one woman
Director and more than fifty percent of the Board of Directors comprising of Non-Executive Directors. Corporate Governance acts as a pioneer factor
for the decision-making process by Board of Directors of the Company. The Board's role is to oversee the management and governance of the
Company. We believe that an active, well-informed and independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of Corporate Governance.

Being a two-tier Corporate Governance structure at the Company, the Board of Directors, along with its Committees, provides leadership and
guidance to the Management, leads, directs and supervises the performance of the Company, thereby enhancing stakeholder value. The Board has a
fiduciary relationship in ensuring that the rights of all stakeholders are protected.

In contracts that involve any potential conflict of interest, the Interested Directors excuse themselves and the ultimate decision-making authority is
conferred upon the Independent Directors of the Company, representing fair, transparent and ethical business environment in the Company.

a) COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of eminent professionals and has an optimum combination of Executive Directors ("ED"),
Non- Executive Directors ("NED") and Independent Directors ("ID"), including a Woman Director, with half of the Board comprising of Non-
Executive and Independent Directors to maintain the Board's independence, and distinguish its functions of Governance and Management.

The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance norms in terms of constitution of the Board of Directors.

The strength of the Board is six Directors comprising two Executive including the Chairman of the Company and four Non-Executive
Directors. Fifty percent of the Board of Directors consists of Independent Directors on account of Executive Director designated as the
Chairman. All Directors possess relevant qualifications and experience in general corporate management, finance, banking, architecture,
designing and other allied fields which enable them to effectively contribute to the Company in their capacity as Directors.

Composition of the Board

B Executive Directors

B |ndependent Director

MNon-Executive, Non
independant Director
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b)

The Composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations read with Section 149 of the Act. Details of
Directors such as nationality, attendance, directorship, category is as under:

Name of Category No. of Board | Attendance Number of Other | No. of Committee positions | Nationality [ Shareholding
Directors Meetings | at the last Directorships* held in other Companies in the
attended AGM Company
durll;.lithe Membership |Chairman- Membership Chair.man-
2023-24 ship ship
Shri Rajesh Agrawal| Promoter - Chairman 5 Yes - - - Indian | 6,99,463
and Managing
Director
Shri Rakesh Promoter - Managing 5 No - - - - Indian | 7,01,869
Agrawal Director
Shri Om Parkash Non - Executive,
Singal Independent Director 5 Yes 1 - 1 - Indian -
Shri Ram Chawla Non - Executive,
Independent Director 5 No - - - - Indian -
Shri Raj Kumar Non - Executive,
Mittal Independent Director 5 No - - - - Indian -
Ms. Yogita Agrawal | Non - Executive, 5 Yes - - - - Indian -
Woman Director

*Excludes Directorships in Foreign Companies.

In accordance with Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committees in all public limited companies (excluding this Company) have been considered.

Mr. Om Parkash Singal is an Independent Director and a member of the Audit Committee of Sakuma Exports Limited. He ceased from the position of
Independent Director of Sakuma Exports Limited as on March 31,2024.

Board Meetings

The Board/Committee meetings are pre-scheduled to enable the Directors to plan their schedules and to ensure their meaningful participation in the
meetings. However, in case of special and urgent business need, the Board's approval is taken at a specially convened meeting or by circular resolution,
inwhich case itis ratified at the subsequent Board meeting.

During the financial year 2023-24, 5 (five) Board Meetings were held on the following dates:

May 25,2023 August 10,2023 November 11,2023 February 12,2024 March 29,2024

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The gap between two consecutive Board meetings was in compliance with the provisions
contained in the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Company proactively keeps its directors informed of the activities of the Company, its
management, operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as insights into issues being faced by the industry. The Board of Directors
have recommended a final dividend in the Board Meeting held on May 29, 2024, subject to approval of members at ensuing AGM and if approved shall
be paid within thirty days (i.e. upto August 21, 2024). The Board at its meetings reviews various management aspects such as performance of the
Company, business plans, annual budgets, capex plans, appointment/remuneration of senior management, general economic conditions and details of
investor greviances.

Proper notices and detailed agenda papers for the Board/Committee meetings along with all material information are sent well in advance to enable
Directors to study deliberate, suggest and guide the Company in its decisions.

During the F.Y. 2023-24, information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its
consideration.

Further, the Board also periodically reviews the compliance reports of applicable laws to the Company as well as steps taken to rectify instances of non-
compliances, if any.

Attendance of Directors during FY 2023-24

Date of the Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present

May 25, 2023 6 6

August 10, 2023

November 11, 2023

February 12, 2024

NN DD
NN |

March 29, 2024
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¢)  Disclosure of Relationships between Directors Inter-Se

During the year under review, the Board comprised of total six Directors out of which three Directors were appointed as Independent Directors
inaccordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Details in regard of inter-se relationship between Executive and Non- Executive Directors are given below:

Sr.No | Name of Director Category of Director Nature of Relationship
between Directors Inter-se
1 Shri Rajesh Agrawal Executive Director Brother of Shri. Rakesh Agrawal
2 Shri Rakesh Agrawal Executive Director Brother of Shri. Rajesh Agrawal

Father of Shri. Yogita Agrawal

3 Ms. Yogita Agrawal Non - Executive Director Daughter of Shri. Rakesh Agrawal

Non-Executive and Independent Directors do not hold any shares and Convertible instruments in the Company.
d)  Familiarisation Programmes for Independent Directors

The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations with the Company,
their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company,
product portfolio, Industry overview, manufacturing operations, internal control system and processes, functioning of various divisions, HR
Management etc. The Board members are provided with necessary documents/ brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them to
familiarise with the Company's procedures and practices.

Periodic updates on relevant statutory changes, upcoming corporate actions, accounting policies, internal control systems and business
presentations are circulated to the Directors. The details of such familiarisation programme for Independent Directors is available on the
website of the Company and can be accessed at www.elegantmarbles.com.

e)  KeyBoard Qualifications, Expertise and Attributes

The Board of the Company is highly structured to ensure a high degree of diversity by age, education/qualifications, professional background,
sector expertise and special skills. The following are the skills as identified by the Board.

Core skills/Expertise/Competencies identified by the Board of Names of Directors who have Skills expertise /
Directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) Competence
e Finance, Law, Management, Administration, Corporate Governance Shri Raj Kumar Mittal,
related to the Company’s business Shri Om Parkash Singal,
Shri Rajesh Agrawal
e Technical Operations and knowledge on Production, Processing, Shri Ram Chawla,
Quality and Marketing of Marbles and Granites Shri Rakesh Agrawal,
Shri Rajesh Agrawal
e- Management, Strategy, Sales, Marketing, Administration Technical Shri Rakesh Agrawal,
Operations related to the Company’s business Shri Rajesh Agrawal,
Ms.Yogita Agrawal,

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors of the Company has Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

The composition of committees is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of these Committees
are determined by the Board and their relevance is reviewed from time to time. Meetings of each of these Committees are convened by the respective
Chairman or any member of the Committee, who also informs the Board about the summary of discussions held in the Committee Meetings.

The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are sent to all Directors individually and tabled at the Board Meetings.

During the year, all recommendations of the Committees of the Board which were mandatorily required have been accepted by the Board.

The Board Committees are setup under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by
the members of the respective Board Committees.

Audit Committee
The Company has constituted a well-qualified and Independent Audit Committee as required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 as also
in fulfilment of the requirements of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide

effective supervision of the management’s financial reporting process with a view to ensure accurate, timely and proper disclosures and transparency,
integrity and quality of financial reporting.
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a)

1)

2)
3)
4)

5)
6)

7)
8)
9)
10)
11)
12)
13)

14)
15)

16)

17)

18)
19)
20)
21)

22)
23)
24)

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee include:
The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s internal controls and financial reporting
process and, inter alia, performs the following functions:

To oversee the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information and to ensure that the Financial
Statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

To approve payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

To review with management the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the Board, focusing primarily on:

a)  Anychangeinaccounting policies and practices.

b)  Matters to be included in the Director's responsibility statement to be included in the Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of subsection
(3) of Section 134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013;

¢)  Majoraccounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management Qualifications in the draft audit report;

d)  Significantadjustments arising out of audit;

e)  The going concern assumption;

f) Compliance with the accounting standards;

g)  Compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements;

h)  Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

i) Any Related Party Transactions i.e., transactions of the Company of material nature, with Promoters or the Management, their
Subsidiaries or relative etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large;

To review with the Management, the Quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval,

To review with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified
institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter.

To review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
To approve or subsequently modify transactions of the listed entity with related parties
scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments
valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary
evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems
To review with Management; External and Internal Auditors, and review the efficacy of internal control systems;

To review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit;

To discuss with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board,;

discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern

to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends)and creditors;

to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
To approve the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background of the candidate.
To carry out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed
entity and its shareholders.

management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations
the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chiefinternal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee.
And matters listed in Part C of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations and in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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b)

<)

1I.

a)

b)

Composition of the Audit Committee and attendance details during the financial year ended March 31,2024 are given below:

The Audit Committee comprises of experts specialising in accounting/financial management. The details of the composition of the Audit Committee
ofthe Company as well as the attendance of the Members at the same are summarised below:

. No. of Meetings
Name of the Member Category Position
Held Attended
Shri Om Parkash Singal Non-Executive,Independent Director Chairman 4 4
Shri Ramchandra Chawla Non-Executive,Independent Director Member 4 4
Shri Raj Kumar Mittal Non-Executive,Independent Director Member 4 4
Shri Rajesh Agrawal Promoter & Managing Director Member 4 4

Meetings held
The Committee met 4 (four) times during the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates:

May 25, 2023 August 10, 2023
November 11, 2023 February 12, 2024
The Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the Annual General Meeting of the Company held held on August 02, 2023.

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, and Chief Financial Officer are invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The gap between two consecutive Committee meetings was in compliance with the provisions contained in the Listing Regulations.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee’s constitution and terms of references are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
19 and Part D of the Schedule 11 of the Listing Regulations.

The scope of activities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee include:

The terms of reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee include:

1) To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the board of
directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

2) For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an
independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified

in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
c. consider the time commitments of the candidates.
3) To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors
4) To devise a policy on the diversity of Board of Directors;
5) To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid

down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and

sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

6) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors.
7) To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. relationship of remuneration to performance

is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and Remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
Company and its goals.

8) To perform such other duties and responsibilities as may be consistent with the provisions of the committee charter;

9) All matters listed in Part D of Schedule I1 to the Listing Regulations and in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance details during the financial year ended March 31,2024 are given below:
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)

d)

e)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 4 (Four) Directors, the Chairman being Non-Executive and Independent. The Chairman of the
Committee is an Independent Director. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The
Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as well as the particulars of attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Meetings is as under:

Name of the Member Category Position No. of Mectings
Held Attended
Shri Raj Kumar Mittal Non Executive Independent Director Chairman 2 2
Shri Om Parkash Singal Non Executive Independent Director Member 2 2
Shri Ramchandra Chawla Non Executive and Independent Director Member 2 2
Shri Rajesh Agrawal Promoter and Managing Director Member 2 2
Meetings held

The Committee met 2 (two) times during the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates:

May 25,2023 March 29,2024

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was not present at
the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 02,2023. However, he had appointed Mr. Om Parkash Singal, Non-Executive
and Independent Director of the Company and also Member of the Committee as his authorized representative at the Annual General Meeting.

Performance Evaluation

The criteria of performance evaluation process inter alia consider attendance of Directors at Board and Committee meetings, acquaintance
with business, communicating inter se board members, effective participation, vision and strategy etc. in compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and guidelines.

The Board carried out annual performance evaluation of the Board, Board Committees, Individual Directors and the Chairperson. The
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shared the evaluation summary with the Board members. The Board members
appreciated the leadership and performance of the Chairman and Managing Director (CMD), Managing Director (MD) and Woman Director,
vigilant and purposive participation of the Independent Directors of the Company and expressed an overall satisfaction towards the entire
evaluation mechanism.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy
I Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors

The Remuneration to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, etc. is governed by the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, resolution passed by the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company and as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The break-up of the pay scale,
performance bonus/commission and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to PF, pension scheme, medical
expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and shall be within the
overall remuneration approved by the shareholders wherever required. Annual increments are linked to performance and are decided by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and recommended to the Board for approval thereof. The Nomination and Remuneration
Policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements. It is aimed at attracting and retaining high caliber
talent.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors, as it may consider
appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to Managing Director during the year 2023-24 are given below:

(% in lakhs)
Name of the Director Salary Perquisites Incentive Total Service Contract/Notice Period/
Pay Severance Fees
Shri Rajesh Agrawal 40.50 4.68 Nil 45.18 September 01, 2026 to August 30, 2026
There is no Notice Period and Severance Fees
Shri Rakesh Agrawal 40.50 4.68 Nil 45.18 September 01, 2026 to August 30, 2026
There is no Notice Period and Severance Fees
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I11.

ii.

ii.

Remuneration to Non-Executive /Independent Directors:

The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fees. The Non Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for each meeting
of the Board or Committee of Board of Directors attended by them. The Non-Executive Independent Directors do not have any material
pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending meetings as prescribed under
Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) are subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or
any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. Non-Executive Directors of the
Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. They bring in an external perspective to decision-making and provide
leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining objective judgment. They also oversee corporate governance framework of the Company.

The Company currently has no stock option plan for any of its Directors. During the year under review, none of the Directors was paid any
performance-linked incentive or commission.

Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which are of professional in nature shall not be
considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied:

i The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and
ii.  Inthe opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of that profession.
During the year under review, there was no pecuniary relationship or transactions of any of the Non-Executive Directors with the Company.

Details of payments made to Non-Executive Independent Directors during the year 2023-24 are given below:

Sitting Fees for Non-Executive Independent
Name Directors (X in lakhs) *
Shri Raj Kumar Mittal 0.55
Shri Ram Chawla 0.55
Shri Om Parkash Singal 0.65

Details of payments made to Non-Executive Directors during the year 2023-24 are given below:
Sitting Fees for Non-Executive
Name Directors (X in lakhs) *

Ms. Yogita Agrawal 0.35

* Apart from sitting fees as mentioned above, Non- Executive Directors are neither entitled to any commission nor any employee stock
options from the Company. None of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors holds any shares in the Company.

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company's Policy. The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance
between performance of the Company and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or
at such intervals as may be considered appropriate.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The terms of reference and the ambit of powers of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as per the governing provisions of Section 178 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (specified in Part D of Schedule II). The
status of member correspondences, queries, grievances etc. are endeavoured to be addressed instantaneously by the secretarial department and status
thereof is also placed before the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meeting which meets at timely intervals. The Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee is primarily responsible to review all matters connected with the Company's transfer of securities and redressal of shareholders' /
investors'/ security holders' complaints.

The Committee's composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 the Listing
Regulations.

a)

The terms of reference for the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee include
1) 1)To resolve grievances of the shareholders in respect of share transfers, transmission, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
dividend, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings and other related activities.

2)  Toreview measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

3)  Toreview dematerialization of shares
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b)

Iv.

4)  Toreview adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent.

5)  Matters relating to transfer of shares to the demat account of the IEPF Authority

6)  To Review various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring
timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. ]

7)  Toperform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of'its duties

8)  To carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification / amendment
ormodification as may be applicable.

Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and attendance details during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 are
given below:

Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of 4 (Four) Directors, of which two are Executive Directors and two are Non-executive
Directors, out of which one is an Independent Director. The detailed constitution and attendance at the committee meetings is as under:

No. of Meetings
Name of the Member Category Position
Held Attended
Ms. Yogita Agrawal Non-Executive Director Chairperson 2 2
Shri Rajesh Agrawal Managing Director Member 2 2
Shri Rakesh Agrawal Managing Director Member 2 2
Shri Om Parkash Singal Non-Executive Independent Director Member 2 2

¢)  Number of Meetings
During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met twice on December 27, 2023 and February 12, 2024.

d)  Details of Shareholders’ Complaints received during the FY 2023-24:

The status of investor grievances received during the financial year 2023-24 is as follows:

Number of Shareholders’ Number of complaints not solved Number of pending
Complaints received during to the satisfaction of the shareholders complaints the year
Nil Nil Nil

Meeting of Independent Directors

In terms of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations and Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, a separate was held by the Independent
Directors of the Company without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management. All the Independent
Directors of the Company were present at the meeting. Such meetings are conducted informally to enable Independent Directors to discuss
matters pertaining to the Company’s affairs and put forth their views.

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on March 29, 2024, inter alia, to:

. Evaluate the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a Whole;

. Evaluate the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and Non - Executive
Directors; and

. Evaluate the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the Board that is necessary for the
Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

General Body Meetings / Postal Ballot

Following table demonstrates the particulars of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company:
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4.

Year ended Date and Time Venue Special Resolutions passed
March 31, 2023 August 02, 2023 E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, 1.Re-appointment of Shri Rajesh Agrawal
at 09:00 a.m. Abu Road - 307 026, Rajasthan (DIN: 00017931) as the Chairman &

Managing Director
2.Re-appointment of Shri Rakesh Agrawal
(DIN: 00017951) as the Managing Director

March 31, 2022 July 13,2022 E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, -
at 09:00 a.m. Abu Road - 307 026, Rajasthan
March 31, 2021 August 10, 2021 E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, To re-appoint Shri Rakesh Agrawal as the Abu
at 09:00 a.m. Road - 307 026, Rajasthan Managing Director of the Company
DISCLOSURES

i.

i.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer

Ms. Pooja Ponda, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer of the Company for complying with the requirements of the Listing
Regulations.

Means of Communication

Quarterly results: The Company's quarterly/half'yearly are sent to the Stock Exchanges and published in 'Free Press Journal', Navshakti' and
Prabhat Abhinandan/ Jagruk Times, Sirohi'. Simultaneously, they are also put up on the Company's website (www.elegantmarbles.com).

Website: The Company's website (www.elegantmarbles.com) contains a separate dedicated section 'Investor Relations' where shareholders'
information is available. The Company's Annual Report is also available in downloadable form.

Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Directors' Report, Auditors' Report and other
important information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report
forms part of the Annual Report.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 'Listing Centre'): BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for
corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, statement of investor complaints, among
others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

Communication via E-mail: The Company has designated the following email-ids exclusively for investor servicing i.e.
companysecretary@elegantmarbles.com and mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redress
system. The salient features of this system are: Centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by
concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.

General Shareholder Information

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Rajasthan. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)is L14101RJ1984PLC003134.

Annual General Meeting

Date: Tuesday, July 23,2024

Time: 09:00 a.m.

Venue: E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road - 307 026, Rajasthan

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, particulars of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the
ensuing AGM are given in the Annexure to the Notice of the 39th AGM to be held on Tuesday, July 23,2024.

Financial Year of the Company

The Company follows the financial year as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 that is period of 12 months starts from 1st day of April of
ayear and ending on the 31st day of March of the following year.

Listing on Stock Exchange

Equity shares of the Company are listed on the following Indian Stock Exchange:

Name of Exchange: BSE Limited (“BSE”)

Address: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001
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Stock Code: 526705

The Annual listing fees for the year 2023-24 has been paid by the Company to BSE Limited, as per the invoices raised by the Stock Exchange.
vii. Stock Market Price Data

High, Low during each month in the financial year 2023-24 on BSE:

Month High Price Low Price
Apr-23 114.70 99.25
May-23 147.95 110.05
Jun-23 204.00 139.05
Jul-23 178.00 144.45
Aug-23 173.00 150.15
Sep-23 186.85 160.00
Oct-23 208.70 170.35
Nov-23 347.00 185.00
Dec-23 364.00 327.00
Jan-24 359.80 249.30
Feb-24 287.40 225.05
Mar-24 286.00 215.00

viii. Performance of Elegant Share Price in comparison with BSE Sensex

Note: The monthly closing prices of the Sensex and Elegant equity shares have been considered.
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ix.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

xiv.

Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

Registrar and Transfer Agents

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, 1st Floor, LBS Road, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai—400 083

Tel. No.: +91224918 6000 Fax No.: +91 22 4918 6060

Email: rt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Asrequired by SEBI and approved by NCLT, Universal Capital Securities Private Limited has merged with Link Intime India Private Limited
effective 22-12-2023.

Plant Location

The Company has its Factory situated at E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road - 307 026, Rajasthan.

Address for correspondence

The correspondence address of the Company for letters, communications and notices is the Corporate Office of the Company situated at
Elegant House, Raghuvanshi Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai 400 013.

Share Transfer System

In accordance with the proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the Listing Regulations, effective from April 01, 2019, transfers of shares of the
Company shall not be processed unless the shares are held in the dematerialised form with a depository. Accordingly, shareholders holding
equity shares in physical form are urged to have their shares dematerialised so as to be able to freely transfer them and participate in various
corporate actions.

Nomination facility for shareholding

Members holding shares in physical form may obtain a nomination form (Form SH-13), from the Company’s RTA. Members holding shares in
dematerialised form should contact their Depository Participants (DP) in this regard. Nomination facility in respect of shares held in electronic
form is also available with the Depository Participants as per the bye-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL.

Other Disclosures

a)  There are no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company which may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large. The Company has formulated a Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions and the same may
be accessed at: http://www.elegantmarbles.com/policies/.

b)  All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary
course of business. All Related Party transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Details of Related Party
Transactions are provided in the Financial Statements of the Company.

¢)  During the last 3 years, there were no strictures or penalties imposed on the Company by either SEBI or the Stock Exchange or any
statutory authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

d)  The Company is in full compliance with the mandatory requirements as contained in the Listing Regulations. The Company has also
adopted certain non-mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations i.e. providing the Chairman of the Company with the resources
required by him to discharge his responsibilities as Chairman of the Company while in India to attend the Company’s Board Meetings.

e)  The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The
Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit
Committee

f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries. The Company’s policy for determining material subsidiaries is put up on the Company’s
website and can be accessed at http://www.elegantmarbles.com/policies/.

g)  TheFinancial Statements of the Company are unqualified.
h)  Therearenoloans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested.

1) The Company has complied with regulation 17 to 27 of the listing regulations and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46
of'the listing regulations.

1) There are no complaints of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace filed in the Company during the FY 2023-24.

k)  During the period under review, 6,97,000 Equity Shares of the Company have been bought back, such buyback has been approved by the
Board of Directors on November 11, 2023 and Shareholders by means of Postal Ballot special resolution on December 22, 2023, for
cash at a price of Rs. 385/- per shares, by tender offer route — Stock Exchange Mechanism. The extinguishment of 6,97,000 (Six Lakhs
Ninety Seven Thousand) Equity Shares accepted under the Buyback, has been completed on February 02, 2024. Post Buyback Share
Capital is Rs. 2,96,30,000.
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xv. TRANSFER OF UNPAID /UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATIONAND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend, which remains unclaimed for a period of seven years, will be
transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government pursuant to Section
125 ofthe Companies Act,2013.

With effect from 7 September 2016, Investors / Depositors whose unpaid dividends, matured deposits or debentures etc. were transferred to
IEPF under Companies Act, 1956 and/or Companies Act, 2013 can claim the amounts as per the procedures/guidelines available at the website
of Ministry of Corporate Affairs: www.mca.gov.in.

Following are the details of Dividend paid by the Company and its due date of transfer to the IEPF if they remain unclaimed by the Members:

Dividend for the year Date of Declaration of Dividend Due Date
2022-23 August 02,2023 September 25,2030

The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on the Company's website www.elegantmarbles.com as
also on the website of IEPF Authority www.iepf.gov.in.

In terms of Section 125(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company is required to transfer the shares in respect of which dividends have remained unclaimed for a period of seven
consecutive years to the [IEPF Account established by the Central Government.

Declaration by the Managing Director under Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

I, Rajesh Agrawal, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, hereby declare that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and
Senior Management Personnel, aftirmation that they have complied with the ‘Code of Conduct’ of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

Rajesh Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 00017931

Date: May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR [CMD] AND CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER [CFO] CERTIFICATION

To,
The Board of Directors,
Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

As required under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations) read with
Schedule II part B of the Listing Regulations;

We hereby certify for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 that:

a. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year 2023-24 and that to the best of my knowledge and
belief:
1)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
2)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year 2023-24 which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.
c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining the internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the

effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to the financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
1) there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
2)  there are no significant changes in the accounting policies during the year that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements; and

3)  there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware during the year.

For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited For Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited
Rajesh Agrawal Hitesh Kothari
Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 29, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members

Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited
AbuRoad.

We have examined the compliance by Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited (the Company) with the requirements under the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) relating to corporate governance requirements for the year ended 31st
March, 2024.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to a review
of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance under
the Listing Regulations. The examination is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company or the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representation made by the Directors and the
management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and may not be suitable for any other purpose.

For M/S.SBDA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 142004W)
(Sanjeev A. Mehta
Partner

M. No. 041287

UDIN: 24041287BKEZ0Q2291
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2024
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited
E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area,

Abu Road — 327026, Rajasthan, India.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries
Limited (Hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), having CIN: L14101RJ1984PLC003134 and having registered office at E-7/9, RIICO Industrial
Area, Abu Road — 327026, Rajasthan, India, produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the
portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its Officers, I hereby certify that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Sr. No. | Name of the Directors DIN Date of Appointment Original Date of
at current Designation Appointment
1 Rajesh Ramswaroop Agrawal 00017931 01/08/2009 01/08/2009
2 Rakesh Agrawal 00017951 01/10/2015 05/11/1984
3 Om Parkash Singal 02585264 15/07/2015 09/05/2015
4 Yogita Rakesh Agrawal 06965966 24/09/2014 24/09/2014

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of'the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: May 04, 2024 Virendra G. Bhatt

Place: Mumbai Practicing Company Secretary
ACS No.: 1157 / COP No.: 124
Peer Review Cert. No.: 1439/2021
UDIN: A001157F000307419
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Elegant Marbles And Grani Industries Limited
Abu Road (Raj.)

1.

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified in Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit, and other comprehensive income, changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Non-receipt of audited statement of account in case of investment through PMS/Fund Managers

a. The Company has invested in shares, securities, debentures, units of mutual funds etc. through Fund Managers & Portfolio
Management Service (PMS) providers. These Fund Managers/PMS entities provide statement showing investments made by
them on behalf of the company, gains/losses earned/incurred on sale of such investments, expenses incurred by them including
their fees for managing the portfolio and the balance of investments remaining with them at the end of the year. The Company
accounts for these transactions in its books of accounts on receipt of such statements. However, in all these cases of investment
through PMS/fund managers, the audited statements for the financial year are usually not received before finalisation of our audit
and all the income, expenditure, gains/losses, investments are accounted for on the basis of unaudited statements provided by
these PMS/fund managers to the Company available till the finalisation of our audit. On the basis of its past experience, the
management of the Company is of the opinion that generally no material difference in the income, expenditure, gains/losses,
investment etc. is detected after the audited statements are provided by these PMS/fund managers.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Investment in debentures

b. The Company has invested in debentures of various private/public limited companies directly or through various funds
managers/PMS and accounts for interest accrued and/or received on such investment in debentures from these
companies/funds from time to time. However, in the case of investment in 20.50% debentures of Green Farm Tech Pvt. Ltd.
amounting to Rs.75,00,000/-, 20% debentures of Samruddhi Realty Ltd. amounting to Rs.1,00,00,000/-, 18% debentures of
Fortuna Buildcon (India) Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.49,00,000/-, 20% debentures of Diyug Construction Pvt. Ltd. amounting to
Rs.77,89,858/-, 17.25% debentures of Kasata Hometech (India) Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.87,17,500/-, 15% debentures of
Shashwati Realty Pvt. Ltd. amounting to Rs.93,45,000/-, and 18% debentures of BCIL Red Earth Developers India Pvt. Ltd.
amounting to Rs.43,08735/-, the interest and principal sums, wherever due, are not being received on due dates. These
companies/funds managers/PMS managers have earlier informed the Company about the financial and/or liquidity crunch faced
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by these companies, status of their construction projects, the legal cases filed in various forums against these companies and
have been updating the Company with current status of these cases, financial position and recoverability from time to time and
accordingly, advised the company not to account for such interest in its books of accounts on accrual basis. Accordingly, the
interest on such debentures is not being accounted for on accrual basis but is being accounted for on receipt basis. Further,
having regard to the communications received/talks with these companies/fund managers/PMS managers and evaluation of the
underlying assets made by the Board of Directors, wherever in the management's perception, the amounts recoverable against
these investments including interest thereon are not recoverable or partly recoverable, provision to the extent required for the
same has been made and wherever they are fully secured by the underlying security of immoveable properties with their
estimated market values adequately covering the principal amounts as well as interest accrued & already accounted for, no
provision has been made.

In the cases of Green Farm Tech Pvt. Ltd., the fund managers/RPs have informed the Company about diminution in the value of
the underlying assets and advised it to provide for such diminution in the value. Accordingly, the Company has made provision for
principle as well as interest accrued (& accounted) in the current year as an Exceptional ltem in the Profit & Loss account for the
year to the extent required.

In the circumstances as aforementioned, the management has taken a conscious decision to not make a provision for any loss on
recoverability of these debenture investments & interest already accounted in its books of accounts, except in respect of
investments as mentioned in the above para, and has deferred the same till final realisation/decision in various legal proceedings
initiated by fund managers/PMS managers for recovery of these debentures. In absence of any working for evaluation of
underlying asset being produced before us other than the communications received from the fund managers/PMS
managers/Companies, we are notin a position to commentoniit.

Our procedures included, but were not limited to the following:
(i)  Non-receiptof audited statement of account in case of investment through PMS/Fund Managers

(a) Obtained an understanding of management’s process of recording of investments, profit/loss on sale of such
investments, expenses etc. and evaluated it on the basis of earlier year’s audited & unaudited statements furnished by
the PMS entities to check about the difference in the results that occur.

(b) Assessed the appropriateness of the methodology and corrective actions taken in subsequent years.

(c) Assessed the reasonableness & correct recording of the transactions by the PMS entities based on historical data
available with the Company.

(ii) Investmentin debentures

(a) Obtained an understanding of management’s process & methodology of investing in debentures, evaluated the
methodology adopted for assessing the realisability of the debentures & interest thereon and security available
against such investment in debentures. We also tested effectiveness of such evaluation process adopted by the
management to determine recoverable value of the security available.

(b) Assessed the appropriateness of the methodology and valuation model used by the management to estimate the
recoverable value of securities underlying these investments.

(c) Assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions made by the management regarding the value of underlying
security and realisability of the same to cover the investment made by the Company.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The
Company’s annual report is expected to be made availalbe to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statement or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be material misstated.
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When we read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and
regulations.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due tofraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
6. Auditors’Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

a. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b.  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(If the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

d. conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

7.  We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
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10.

1.

12.

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest of such communication.

Other Matters

Our attendance at the time of physical inventory taken by the management was not practicable under the circumstances and
accordingly, we have relied upon the report of the internal auditors and have performed alternative procedures to audit on the existence
and condition of inventory at year end as per the guidance provided in “SA-501 - Audit Evidence - Specific considerations for selected
items” and have obtained sufficient audit evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on these financial results.

In respect of matters related to Goods & Service Tax, this being a legal & technical matter, we have relied upon the working made &
returns filed by the Company based on the professional advice received by it.

The profits/losses, investment value, number of units/shares etc. invested through Portfolio Management Services (PMS) has been
accounted for on the basis of draft reports for the year received from them. In absence of audited figures from the PMS, we express our
inability to comment on their veracity or otherwise.

The gratuity liability for the period has been provided on the basis of report issued by Shri A.P. Peethambaram, fellow of Institute of
Actuaries of India.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of
changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.
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Vi.

13.

Mumbai,

29th May, 2024

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been advances or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities indentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.

b.  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
providing any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

C. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered resonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mistataement.

The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company, during the year is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

As stated in note 27.11 of the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the company have proposed final dividend for
the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

The Company is maintaining its accounts using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility which was made applicable to the Company, w.e.f., April 1, 2023 under Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 through out the year. We did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tempered
with during our audit.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
r.w. Schedule 5 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For SDBA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 142004W)

(Sanjeev A. Mehta)
Partner
M. No.041287

UDIN :24041287BKEZOR6335

Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors Report of even date to the Members of Elegant Marbles and Grani
Industries Ltd. on the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2024

(I(d) (A) The company has maintained proper records of fixed assets showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of

(B)

fixed assets.

The company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) Asexplained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year in accordance with a regular
programme for verification, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets.
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No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
(c) Thetitle deeds of the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of company.
(d) The company has notrevalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(e) Having regard to the representation made by the management, we have to state that no proceedings under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the company as at 31st March, 2024 for holding any benami property.

(@) The inventories (except for goods-in-transit and stocks held with third party) have been physically verified by the management
during the year on a quarterly basis. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the turnover,
nature of its operations and size of the Company. As explained to us, the internal auditors have also participated in the inventory
physical verification process and have reported slight variations which were insignificant having regard to the size of the
company. We have relied on the same and in our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. As regards the stocks
held with third party for job work at the year end, written confirmations have been obtained and in respect of goods in transit, the
goods have been received subsequent to the year end.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits during the year from any bank or financials institution. In view of
it, the reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year, the company has granted loans and/or advances in the nature of loan to Companies, firms, LLPs or other parties
as follows:

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in the
nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted provided during the year
- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Others NIL NIL NIL 18,05,000

Balances outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date
- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Others NIL NIL NIL 10,39,327

(b) Inouropinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the loans to any other parties are prima facie
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) As explained to us, the company has given loans and advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand and/or where
repayment schedule has not been stipulated and as such we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal
and interest thereon.

(d) As the loans are repayable on demand and/or where repayment schedule is not stipulated, it is not possible to comment if
principle and interest is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans granted to any other parties which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or
freshloans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f)  The Company has not granted loans during the year to the promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any deposit in
contravention of section 73 to section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014. As informed to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any other Court or tribunal.

Having regard to the turnover of the Company and as per the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion, the rules regarding
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(@) The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues with appropriate authorities, wherever applicable to it.

(b) Inouropinion and in accordance with the information and explanation given to us, the following demands were not deposited on
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(b)

account of dispute:

Name of the Nature of Period to which Forum where Amount (Rs.)
Statute Dues the amount relates dispute is pending
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax A.Yr. 2017-2018 CIT (Appeals) Rs.5,15,400/-

Having regard to the representation made by the management, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded incomes
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income TaxAct, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
company has not borrowed funds from any financial institutions, banks or lenders. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the
Orderis not applicable.

(b) Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of the records of the Company,
the company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence,
reporting under this clause 3(ix)©of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds have been raised during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the

Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the company has not
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, hence
the clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(a) The company has not raised any funds from initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly,
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of audit conducted by us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by the auditors with the Central Governmentin Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(c) In accordance with the representation received from the management of the Company, the company has not received any
complaints from any whistle-blower during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause
3 (xii)(a), (b) & (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company during the year and till date, in
determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given during the course of our audit, in our opinion, the company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(a) Relying on opinion given by an expert, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
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commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,
clause 3(xvi)©of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us during the course of audit, the Company Group does not have any CIC.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable and not commented upon.

(xvii) The Company has notincurred cash loss during the current financial year and in the immdiately preceeding Financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not

applicable.

(xix) Onthe basis of representation made by the Company, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention which cause us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that our reporting
is based on the facts, data and other information up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) (a) Relying on the opinion of an expert obtained by the Management, the provisions of section 135(5) of the Companies Act,2013 are

not applicable to the company and accordingly there is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and
hence, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable.

For SDBA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 142004W)

(Sanjeev A. Mehta)
Partner
M. No.041287

Mumbai,
29th May, 2024
UDIN :24041287BKEZOR6335

Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Elegant Marbles And Grani
Industries Limited on the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
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records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SDBA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 142004W)

(Sanjeev A. Mehta)
Partner
M. No.041287
Mumbai,
29th May, 2024
UDIN : 24041287BKEZOR6335
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

l. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital Work in Progress
Investment in Property
Goodwill
Other Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Biological assets other than bearer plants
Financial Assets
i. Investments
ii. Trade Receivable
iii. Loans
iv. Others
i. Deferred Tax Assets
j. Other Non-Current Assets

Se~paooy

2. Current assets

a. Inventories

b. Financial Assets
i Investments
ii. Trade Receivable
iii. Cash & Cash Equivalents
iv. Bank Balance other than (iii) above
v. Loans
vi. Others

c. Current Tax Assets (Net)

d. Other Current Assets

Il.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a. Equity Share Capital
b.  Other equity

Liabilities
1. Non Current Liabilities

a. Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Trade Payables
ii. Other Financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Other non-current liabilities
Long Term borrowing

pooo

2. Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities

i.  Borrowing
i. Trade Payables

Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Notes

TOTAL

Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

iii. Other Financial liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Provision

Current tax liabilities (Net)

aoo

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes are an integral part of the financial statements

TOTAL

©oo~

1"
12

13
14

15
16

(T in lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
483.88 195.48
9,848.70 8,398.78
1255 32.42
19.11 6.66
10,364.24 8,633.34
241943 1,791.37
138.22 400.67
359.06 199.05
13.26 7.42
32.78 61.33
8.51 56.07
13516 187.68
3,106.42 2,703.59
13,470.66 11,336.93
296.30 366.00
12,647.08 10.229.77
12,943.38 10,595.77
20.40 16.20
7.87 0.07
5250 52,50
80.77 68.77
75.02 16.49
58.34 62.72
263.42 542.84
4973 50.34
446.51 672.39
527.28 741.16
13,470.66 11,336.93

In terms of our report of even date.
For SDBA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(FRN : 142004W)

Sanjeev A. Mehta

Partner

M. No : 41287

Place : Mumbai

Date : 29" May, 2024

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Rajesh Agrawal

Chairman & Managing Director

Hitesh Kothari
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29" May, 2024

Pooja Ponda

Company Secretary

ACS 66677
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

INCOME
. Revenue from operations
1. Other income

Ill.  Total Revenue (I + II)

IV. EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed
Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Employees benefit expenses
Finance Cost
Depreciation and Amortization expense
Other expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

V.  Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (lll - IV)
VI. Exceptional Items
VII. Profit/(Loss) before tax - (V - VI)
VIIl. Tax Expense
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax (Net)
(3) Excess/(Short) Provision of previous years

IX.  Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (IX - X)

X.  Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued operations
XI.  Tax Expense of Discontinued operations
XIl.  Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (XII - XIII)
XIll.  Profit/(Loss) for the period ( XI + XIV)
XIV  Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
XV. Total Comprehensive income for the period (XV + XVI) (Comprising
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)
XVI. Earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (for continuing operations):

1. Basic
2. Diluted
XVII. Earning per equity share (in Rupees) (for discontinued operations):
1. Basic
2. Diluted
XVIII. Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing operations)*
1. Basic
2. Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes are an integral part of the financial statements

(% in lakhs)
As at As at
Notes 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
21 3,422.42 3,564.86
22 258.37 219.95
3,680.79 3,784.81
144.28 153.45
2,409.56 2,231.48
23 (667.31) (123.28)
24 400.64 318.92
2 50.46 29.94
25 705.04 601.48
3,042.67 3,211.99
638.12 572.82
(92.46) (150.84)
545.66 421.98
136.08 117.72
4.37 0.40
405.21 303.86
405.21 303.86
5,809.71 (44.91)
453.20 112.31
5,761.72 146.64
11.42 8.30
11.42 8.30
11.42 8.30
11.42 8.30

In terms of our report of even date.
For SDBA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(FRN : 142004W)

Sanjeev A. Mehta
Partner
M. No : 41287

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29" May, 2024

Hitesh Kothari
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29" May, 2024

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Rajesh Agrawal
Chairman & Managing Director

Pooja Ponda

Company Secretary
ACS 66677
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024 (T in lakhs)
A Equity Share Capital
As on 31st March, 2022 366.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital -
As on 31st March, 2023 366.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital (69.70)
As on 31st March, 2024 296.30
B  Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus OcCl
General Capital Retained Equity Total
Reserve Redemption earnings Instruments other
Reserve through OCI equity
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 774.22 84.00 7,768.23 1,557.31 10,183.76
Profit for the year - - 303.88 - 303.88
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax- - - 745.51 (902.73) (157.22)
Dividend declared - Paid - - (100.65) - (100.65)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 774.22 84.00 8,716.97 654.58 10,229.77
Profit for the year - - 405.20 - 405.20
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - 2,936.70 2,419.82 5,356.52
Tax on Buy Back of equity shares - - (609.88) - (609.88)
Buyback of Equity Shares (774.22) - (1,909.23) - (2,683.45)
Transfer from retained earnings - 69.70 - - 69.70
Dividend declared - Paid - - (120.78) - (120.78)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 153.70 9,418.98 3,074.40 12,647.08

1.0 Company overview

Elegant Marbles And Grani Industries Limited is a company incorported in India and is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
Ltd. The company is engaged in Manufacturing & Trading of Marble, Granites & Other Stones Tiles & Slabs. The details
regarding registered office, corporate office & principal place of business is disclosed in the introductory page of this Annual
Report.

NOTE ‘“1’: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

1.1. Basis of preparation and presentation

(i)

(ii)

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except certain financial assets & liabilities
which are measured at fair value, defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits and assets held for sale -
measured at fair value less cost of sell:

All the assets and liabilites have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle
of twelve months and other criteria set out in Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013.

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing
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1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents.

(v) Allamounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement
of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses etc. at
the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Property, Plantand Equipment

(i) Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

(i) Capital work-in-progress includes expenditure during construction period incurred on projects under implementation treated
as pre-operative expenses pending allocation to the assets. These expenses are apportioned to the respective fixed assets
on their completion/ commencement of commercial production.

(i)  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on useful life of the assets prescribed in Schedule Il to the
CompaniesAct, 2013 on straight line method.

(iv)  When an asset is scrapped or otherwise disposed off, the cost and related depreciation are removed from the books of
account and resultant profit or loss, if any, is reflcted in statement of Profit and Loss.

(v) The Residual Value, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each
financial year and ajusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful
life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.
Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset or a group of non-
financial assets are impaired. If any such indications exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss which may be
caused to the company. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is considered as a
cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit
is made.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’'s carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are
recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects
of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised
impairmentloss is reversed through profit or loss.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not used by the Company, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and, wherever applicable,
borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any.
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1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Cash & cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances and demand deposits with banks that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original maturity is three
months orless.

Inventory

Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock-in-trade are stated ‘at the lower of cost or net realisable value’. Raw Materials, Work-in-
Progress and Goods-in-transit are stated ‘at cost’. Cost comprise all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost formulae used are ‘First-in-First-out’. Due allowance is estimated
and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary.

Having regard to the nature & value of items of Stores & consumables, the same are treated as consumed in the year of their purchase.

Financial Instruments

U]

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
assets, other than trade receivables, are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI) or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and
- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

Afinancial assetis measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investment in financial asset other than equity instrument, not measured at either amortised cost or FVTOCI is measured at
FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend
income if any, recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Equity Instruments:

All investment in equity instrument classified under finanacial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are measured at FVTPL.

For all other equity instruments, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financial
asets other than those measured at fair value through profitand loss (FVTPL)

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
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(iif)

- The 12 month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

- Full lifetime expected creditlosses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instruments).

(i) Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Loans & Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognized in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as perimpairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative adjustments.

Derivative financial instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Company can use various derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, currency swaps, forwards & options and
commodity contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates, exchange rates and commodity prices. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are also subsequently
measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and
Loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial assets or non-financial liability.

Forthe purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

Cashflow hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets / liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk
of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash flows
attributable to a recognised asset or liability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging
instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve being part
of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging
reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no
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longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Fair value hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets/ liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk
of change in fair value of hedged item due to movementin interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices.

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to Statement of Profit and Loss over the
period of maturity.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial
liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled
orexpires.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset; (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease; and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (‘ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liability is measured by discounting the lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payment made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct cost less any lease incentives and restoration
cost. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and inpaired losses, if any. ROU assets are
depreciated on a straight line basis over the asset's useful life or the lease whichever is shorter. Impairment of ROU assets is in
accordance with the Company's accounting policy forimpairment of tangible and intangible assets.

Company as alessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the expected inflationary costincreases.

Fair Value Measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
- The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation

technique:

Level1:  Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2:  Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly orindirectly.

Level 3:  Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs include interest expenses as per effective interest rate and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.
Provisions and Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably
estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in profit or loss as a finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Acontingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
measured reliably.

Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred to
the buyer either at the time of dispatch or delivery or when the risk of loss transfers. Export sales are generally recognized based on
the shipped on board date as per bill of lading, which is when substantial risks and rewards of ownership are passed to the customers.
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1.14.

1.15.

1.16.

Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of charges collected from customers like transport, packing etc. are not
treated as part of sales. Sales returns are recognised when appropriate. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable and is net of price discounts, allowance for volume rebates and similar items.

Claims/Refunds not ascertainable with reasonable certainty are accounted for on final settlement and are recognized as revenue on
certainty of receipt on prudent basis.

Rendering of services:
Revenue from sale of services are recognized when the services are rendered.

Other Income:
Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Interestincome is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate of interest on prudent
basis.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees
are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

(b) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund & Superannuation fund.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified contributions to a separate
entity. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Pension Scheme. The
Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

Defined benefit Plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972.

Re-measurments of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charge to Other Comprehensive Income.

Empolyee Separation Costs

Compensation to employees who opt for retirement under the voluntary retirement scheme, if any, of the Company is payable in the
year of exercise of option by the employee. The Company recognises the employee separation cost when the scheme is announced
and the Company is demonstrably committed toit.

Foreign exchange transactions and translation
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realised gains and losses
on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to
the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and the resultant
exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

TAXES ONINCOME

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the
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1.17.

1.18.

extentitrelates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

° Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

° Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the assetrealised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Government Grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will
be complied with.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted in reporting the
related expense. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income over the expected useful life of the asset.

In case a non-monetary asset is given free of cost, it is recognised at a fair value. When loans or similar assistance are provided by
government or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
recognized as government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received.

Earning Per Share

The basic earning per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax available to equity share holders for the year by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the current year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity shares unless
impactis anti-dilutive.
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

NOTE ‘3’ : NON -CURRENT INVESTMENTS (X in lakhs)
Face Paid up As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Name of the Company Value Value No. / Units Amount No. / Units Amount

Investment Measured at Amortised Cost
In Debentures and bonds - Unquoted

17.25% Kasata Hometech (India) Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 87 87.18 100 87.18
16% Goodwill Erections Private Limited Ncd 10,00,000 10,00,000 15 144.00 - -
16.5% Hazel Realty Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 100 84.25 - -
18% BCIL Red Earth Developers India Pvt Ltd Ncd 100 75 1,00,000 2.09 1,00,000 22.62
18% Fortune Buildcon India Pvt Ltd Ncd 100 100 1,00,000 8.00 49,000 8.00
19.54% Adima Developers Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,000 1,000 5000 29.75 5,000 32.75
20.50% Green Farm Tech Pvt Ltd Ncd 10,000 10,000 750 9.75 750 77.25
20% Diyug Construction Pvt Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 100 77.90 100 79.56
20% Samrudhi Reality Ltd Ncd 1,00,000 1,00,000 100 50.00 100 50.00
15% Shashwati Realty Pvt Ltd Ncd 10,00,000 10,00,000 15 88.95 14.55 145.50
16.50% Ayyappa Developers Pvt Ltd Ncd 9,50,000 9,35,750 10 46.08 10 93.57
16.50% Shreenathji Developers Pvt Ltd Ncd 10,00,000 9,90,000 10 39.00 10 69.00
_666.95 __ 66543

In Unquoted AIF & Real estate funds
IDFC Real Estate Yield Fund 100 100 - 28.01 - 37.27
IIFL Real Estate AIF Il 4.5717 45717 - 50.81 - 50.81
78.82 88.08
Investment measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - -
Action Construction Equipment Ltd 2 2 - - 4,340 17.67
Ador Welding Ltd 10 10 - - 2,900 26.58
Amber Enterprises Ltd 10 10 - - 5,696 103.79
Ambuja Cements Ltd 2 2 - - 8,000 29.24
Apar Industries Ltd 10 10 2,220 154.93 5,691 133.01
Ashoka Buildcon Ltd 5 5 - - 60,000 44.38
Axis Bank Ltd 2 2 - - 29,633 247.24
Aptech Ltd 10 10 25,000 57.96 - -
Balu Forge Industries Ltd 10 10 30,000 61.37 - -
Banco Products India Ltd 2 2 30,000 178.43 - -
Bajaj Finance Ltd. 10 10 - - 739 24.04
Bharti Airtel Ltd 5 5 - - 20,000 74.90
BHEL 2 2 - - 50,000 35.07
Bombay Burman Trading Corp. Ltd 2 2 25,000 391.61 30,000 243.56
Central Depository Services India Ltd 10 10 - - 6,992 58.42
CESC Ltd 1 1 - - 17,340 10.78
Capacite Infraprojects Ltd 10 10 - - 35,000 41.58
Coffee Day Enterprises Ltd 10 10 - - 30,000 8.57
Can Fin Homes Ltd. 2 2 - - 662 3.50
CESE Ventures Ltd 10 10 35,500 220.63 35,500 129.17
Centum Electronics Ltd 10 10 10,000 167.96 - -
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 5 5 8,500 40.72 - -
Cochin Minerals Rutile Ltd 10 10 10,000 26.92 - -
Deepak Fertilisers Petrochemicals Corpn. Ltd 10 10 9,000 45.42 13,492 44.78
Deep Energy Resources Ltd 10 10 15,000 26.75 - -
Dixon Technologies India Ltd 2 2 - - 5,632 161.17
Exide Industries Ltd 1 1 11,868 36.14 17,868 31.80
EID Parry India Ltd 1 1 30,000 163.70 - -
Everest Kanto Cylinders Ltd 2 2 - - 58,500 52.69
Excel Industries Ltd 5 5 - - 8,460 67.35
Fairchem Organics Ltd 10 10 - - 9,000 82.27
Fermenta Biotech Ltd 5 5 - - 15,000 16.04
Glenmark Lifescience Ltd 2 2 - - 10,000 39.16
Godrej Industries Ltd 1 1 10,000 78.04 28,000 113.12
Gujarat Ambuja Exports Ltd 2 2 - - 28,048 60.81
Gujarat Minerals Corporation Ltd 2 2 - - 25,000 31.64
Guijarat Narmada Valley Fertilizers and Chemicals Ltd 10 10 - - 10,000 50.94
Gujarat State Fertilizers Ltd 2 2 - - 60,000 71.40
Gulf Oil Labricants India Ltd 2 2 - - 23,404 94.65
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Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

NOTE ‘3’ : NON -CURRENT INVESTMENTS (X in lakhs)
Face Paid up As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Name of the Company Value Value No. / Units Amount No. / Units Amount
Glaxosmithkline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 10 10 7,500 145.73 - -
GPT Infraprojects Ltd 10 10 83,146 128.54 - -
HDFC Bank Ltd 1 1 - - 4,000 64.39
HDFC Bank Ltd 1 1 200 2.90 5,575 89.73
Hemisphere Properties India Ltd 10 10 - - 40,000 32.97
Hindustan Oil Exploration Ltd 10 10 92,000 163.25 92,000 110.49
Hindustan Zinc Ltd. 10 10 - - 58,750 172.37
Housing Development Finance Corp Ltd 2 2 - - 15,600 82.68
Housing Development Finance Corp Ltd 2 2 - - 839 22.03
Hindustan Cooper Ltd 5 5 - - 92,500 91.06
Hindustan Construction Co. Ltd 1 1 3,00,000 94.68 - -
ICRALTD 10 10 - - 8 0.35
Indiabulls Real Estate Ltd 2 2 2,32,000 269.00 2,32,000 113.31
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd 10 10 - - 1,171 12.52
Intellect Design Arena Ltd 5 5 - - 15,000 61.64
Indian Railway Finance Corporation Ltd 10 10 - - 1,00,000 26.60
ION Exchange India Ltd 10 10 2,14,843 1089.58 19,731 673.30
India Glycols Ltd 10 10 20,000 151.35 - -
IRCON International Ltd 2 2 - - 70,000 39.20
ISGEC Heavy Engineering Ltd 10 10 9,698 87.08 12,001 48.86
Jindal Saw Ltd 2 2 27,180 117.61 15,808 50.01
JK Paper Ltd 10 10 17,334 55.89 5,534 20.36
JSL Stainless Ltd 2 2 19,547 135.74 45,247 113.45
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 5 5 - - 2,474 42.87
Kirloskar Industries Ltd 10 10 3,740 153.84 4,000 97.34
Kirloskar Pneumatic Co Ltd 2 2 - - 4,500 25.21
K.P. Energy Ltd 5 5 - - 23,500 35.63
KPI Green Energy Ltd 10 10 - - 43,000 179.96
LIC Housing Finance Ltd 2 2 30,000 183.32 - -
Maharashtra Seamless Ltd 5 5 12,264 103.77 8,662 57.79
Man Industries Ltd 5 5 - - 67,520 62.82
Manorama Industries Ltd 10 10 - - 1,500 15.45
Manappuram Finance Ltd 2 2 1,25,000 216.31 1,03,000 127.46
Maithan Alloys Ltd 10 10 5,000 48.92 - -
Network 18 Media Investments Ltd 5 5 50,000 42.95 1,00,000 54.22
NPL Chemicals Ltd 10 10 3,000 43.62 - -
OM Infra Ltd 1 1 1,09,414 137.92 - -
Optiemus Infracom Ltd 10 10 1,40,000 352.80 - -
Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd 1 1 600 35.48 - -
Panache Digilife Ltd 10 10 68,964 51.27 - -
P G Foils Ltd 10 10 - - 2,000 2.68
Patanjali Foods Ltd 2 2 - - 15,162 146.89
PG Electronics Ltd 10 10 - - 2,060 27.40
Piramal Pharma Ltd 10 10 - - 52,000 35.58
Polyplex Corporation Ltd 10 10 - - 3,370 15.96
Power Finance Corporation Ltd 10 10 32,325 126.15 - -
Power Mech Projects Ltd 10 10 3,017 151.17 1,760 82.05
Procter & Gamble Health Ltd 10 10 - - 687 33.18
Prism Johnson Ltd 10 10 - - 17,796 18.75
PSP Projects Ltd 10 10 - - 4,500 30.21
Rategain Travel Technologies Ltd 1 1 - - 6,000 20.58
Rushil Decor Ltd 10 10 - - 60,728 158.93
Salzer Electronics Ltd 10 10 45,055 377.70 11,500 29.14
Sanghvi Movers Ltd 2 2 52,969 716.65 23,949 248.48
Sansera Engineering Ltd 2 2 22,050 225.77 - -
Som Distileries Breweries Ltd 5 5 - - 10,000 15.37
S.P. Apparels Ltd 10 10 - - 39,128 125.64
Sterling and Wilson Renewable Energy Ltd 1 1 64,000 335.26 24,000 70.12
Shyam Metalics and Energy Ltd 10 10 10,000 59.08 - -
Solex Energy Ltd 10 10 4,800 38.88 - -
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

NOTE ‘3’ : NON -CURRENT INVESTMENTS (% in lakhs)

Face Paid up As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Name of the Company Value Value No. / Units Amount No. / Units Amount
Techno Craft Industries India Ltd 10 10 5,002 98.89 606 60.77
Tata Motors DVR 2 2 - - 10,000 20.87
Universal Cables Ltd 10 10 14,226 64.79 21,276 76.30
Uniparts India Ltd 10 10 - - 48,100 260.87
Ultramarine and Pigments Ltd 2 2 - - 15,000 48.90
Va Tech Wabag Ltd 2 2 60,500 461.49 29,500 103.88
Venus Remedies Ltd 10 10 51,802 169.08 - -
Vindhya Telelinks Ltd 10 10 3,174 70.63 3,058 62.50
Vishal Retail Ltd 5 5 - - 54,894 37.66
Valiant Organics Ltd 10 10 14,000 53.17 14,000 58.38
Wipro Ltd 10 10 - - 5,000 18.27

Zee Entertainment Enterprises Ltd 1 1 80,000 __110.96 26,000 __ 5497

8,521.80 6,537.72
Investment measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) e e

In Mutual Fund -Quoted

ICICI Prudential Equity Arbitrage Fund- Lock in upto to month DOI 10 10 - - 30,62,254 947.83
ICICI Prudential Equity Saving Fund DP Cumulative 10 10 - - 6,82,566 131.74
Motilal Oswal Nifty Smallcap 250 Index F. Direct Growth 10 10 25 0.01 25 0.01
0.01 1,079.58
Investment measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Edelweiss Greater China Equity Clubmillionaire Financial Services PMS 1,000 1,000 - - 2,060 0.89
NIPPON INDA LIQUID BEES 1,000 1,000 0.262 - 0.262 -
ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund Direct Growth 10 10 43,916 153.37 -
HDFC Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth Option 10 10 9,017 427.75 -
Nippon ETF PSU Bank Bees 1,000 1,000 - - 2,708 ___ 2708
58112 2797
Total Non Current Investment 9,848.70 8,398.78
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 6,038.90 7,001.80
Market Value of Quoted Investments 9,102.93 7,645.27
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 745.77 753.51
Category-wise Non current Investment - -
Financial Assets measured at cost 745.77 753.51
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 8,521.81 7,617.30
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 581.12 27.97

Total Non Current Investment 9,848.70 8,398.78
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

(X in lakhs)
As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NOTE ‘4’ : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS /(LIABILITIES)
At the start of the year (0.06) 85.80
Deferred tax for current year (7.81) (85.87)
At the end of the year (7.87) (0.07)
Components of Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets :
Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets in relation to:
Property, Plant & Equipment (8.14) (3.78)
Carried Forward Loss 0.27 3.7
(7.87) (0.07)
NOTE ‘5’ : OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Deposits 19.11 6.66
19.11 6.66
NOTE ‘6’ : INVENTORIES
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw Material - 39.25
Finished Goods 2,350.98 1,737.61
Stock-in-transit 68.45 14.51
2,419.43 1,791.37
NOTE ‘7’ : TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 150.77 433.09
150.77 433.09
Current portion 138.22 400.67
Non-current portion 12.55 32.42
Trade Receivable Aging Schedule As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Less Than 6 Month to 1to 2 2to3 Morethan Total
6 Month 1 Year Year Year 3 Year
Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Good 120.80 17.42 9.66 - 2.89 150.77
Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
Total 120.80 17.42 9.66 - 2.89 150.77
Trade Receivable Aging Schedule As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Less Than 6 Month to 1to 2 2to3 Morethan Total
6 Month 1 Year Year Year 3 Year
Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Good 395.91 4.76 29.95 2.47 - 433.09
Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
Total 395.91 4.76 29.95 2.47 - 433.09
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

Break-up of security details
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

NOTE ‘8’ : CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash equivalents

Balance with Bank in current accounts

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
(including interest accrued thereon)

Cash on hand

NOTE ‘9’ : CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCE
Earmarked Unpaid dividend accounts

NOTE ‘10’ : CURRENT FINANACIAL ASSETS - OTHER
Unsecured, Considered good

Interest receivable

NOTE ‘11’ : CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Income tax (net of provisions)

NOTE ‘12’ : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured & considered good)

Advance to Employees

Advance to suppliers

Balance with revenue authorities
Deposits

Other Recoverable

Prepaid Expenses

As at

31.03.2024

150.77

150.77

350.57

8.49

359.06

13.26

13.26

32.78

32.78

8.51

8.51

10.51
61.30
15.63
7.00
0.66
40.06

135.16

(T in lakhs)
As at
31.03.2023

433.09

433.09

187.27

11.78
199.05

7.42
7.42

61.33
61.33

56.07
56.07

2.80
75.84

7.00
63.13
38.91

187.68
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(T in lakhs)
As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NOTE ‘13’ : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
50,00,000 (Previous Year : 50,00,000) Equity Shares of I10/- each. 500.00 500.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
29,63,000 (Previous year : 36,60,000) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 296.30 366.00
TOTAL 296.30 366.00
(a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding (% in lakhs)

at the beginning and at the end of the year :

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
No.of Amount No.of Amount

Shares Shares
At the beginning of the period 36,60,000 366.00 36,60,000 366.00
Issue during the year - - - -
Buy back of shares during the year (6,97,000) (69.70) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 29,63,000 296.30 36,60,000 366.00

The Company bought back 697000 equity shares of Rs.10 each for an aggregate value of Rs.26.83 crores being 19.04% of the total paid
up equity share capital at Rs.385/- per equity share during the year ended 31st March, 2024. The equity shares bought back were
extinguished on 02.02.2024.

(b)__Equity Shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares along with number of equity shares is given below :
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Name of the Shareholder

No.of % No.of %

Shares Shares
Shri Rajesh Agrawal 699,463 23.61% 8,90,473 24.33%
Shri Rakesh Agrawal 7,01,869 23.69% 8,93,273 24.41%
Smt. Alka Agrawal 3,58,269 12.09% 4,21,745 11.52%
Smt. Divya Agrawal 3,42,455 11.56% 4,03,345 11,02%
21,02,056 70.94% 26,08,836 71.28%

(c) (i) Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year:

% of holding % of change

No of Shares

of equity during the

Name of the Promoters 31-03-2023 Change 31-03-2024 shares year
Shri Rajesh Agrawal 8,90,473 (1,91,010) 6,99,463 23.61% (5.22%)
Shri Rakesh Agrawal 8,93,273 (1,91,404) 7,01,869 23.69% (5.23%)
Smt. Alka Agrawal 4,21,745 (63,476) 3,568,269 12.09% (1.73%)
Smt. Divya Agrawal 4,03,345 (60,890) 3,42,455 11.56% (1.66%)
Smt. Indu Sachin Sanghi 15,600 (3,126) 12,474 0.42% (0.09%)

26,24,436 (5,09,906) 21,14,530 71.36% (13.93%)
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© (i)

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year:

No of Shares

% of holding

% of change

of equity during the

Name of the Promoters 31-03-2022 Change 31-03-2023 shares year
Shri Rajesh Agrawal 8,43,697 46,776 8,90,473 24.33% 1.28%
Shri Rakesh Agrawal 7,18,202 1,75,071 8,93,273 24.41% 4.78%
Smt. Alka Agrawal 4,21,745 - 4,21,745 11.52% 0.00%
Smt. Divya Agrawal 4,03,345 - 4,03,345 11.02% 0.00%
Smt. Gita Agrawal 2,21,847 (2,21,847) - 0.00% (6.06%)
Smt. Indu Sachin Sanghi 15,600 - 15,600 0.43% 0.00%

26,24,436 - 26,24,436 71.71% 0.00%

d) Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject

to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

NOTE ‘14’ : OTHER EQUITY (X in lakhs)
Particulars Reserves and Surplus OClI
General Capital Retained Equity Total Other
Reserve Redemption earnings Instruments equity
through OCI
Balance as at March 31, 2022 774.22 84.00 7,768.23 1,557.31 10,183.76
Profit for the year - - 303.88 - 303.88
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - 745.51 (902.73) (157.22)
Dividend declared - Paid - - (100.65) - (100.65)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 774.22 84.00 8,716.97 654.58 10,229.77
Profit for the year - - 405.20 - 405.20
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - 2,936.70 2,419.82 5,356.52
Tax on Buy Back of equity shares - - (609.88) - (609.88)
Buyback of Equity Shares (774.22) - (1,909.23) - (2,683.45)
Transfer from retained earnings - 69.70 - - 69.70
Dividend declared - Paid - - (120.78) - (120.78)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 153.70 9,418.98 3,074.40 12,674.08
Capital Redemption Reserve
Represent Reserve created during buy back of Equity Shares and it is a non-distributable reserve.
NOTE ‘15’ : PROVISIONS - NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES As at As at
i, ) 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 20.40 16.20
20.40 16.20
NOTE ‘16’ : OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deposits 37.50 37.50
Amount payable against office premises 15.00 15.00
__5250 __52.50_
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As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NOTE ‘17’ : TRADE PAYABLES
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others 75.02 16.49
75.02 16.49
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Not Less 1to 2 2to 3 More then Total
due then 1 Years Years 3 Years
Year
MSME - - - - - -
Others 68.45 6.57 - - - 75.02
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 68.45 6.57 - - - 75.02
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Not Less 1to 2 2to 3 More then Total
due then 1 Years Years 3 Years
Year
MSME - - - - - -
Others 14.51 1.02 0.96 - - 16.49
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 14.51 1.02 0.96 - - 16.49
As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NOTE ‘18’ : CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABIILITS - OTHER
Unclaimed Dividend 13.26 7.42
Employee related liabilities 18.86 17.22
Other Payables _ 2622 _38.08
58.34 2.72
NOTE ‘19’ : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from customers 240.93 520.84
Statutory dues payable 21.20 20.30
Other Payables 1.29 1.70
263.42 542.84
NOTE ‘20’ : PROVISION - CURRENT LIABILITIES)
Provision for employee benefits 49.73 50.34
49.73 50.34
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As at
31.03.2024
NOTE ‘21’ : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products
Sales of Goods 3,265.31
Other operating revenues 157.11
3,422.42
NOTE ‘22’ : OTHER INCOME
Dividend received 75.14
Interest received 80.13
Leave and License Fees 91.88
Other Income 3.25
Gain on financial assets* 7.97
258.37
*Includes fair value gain/(Loss) as at 31st March, 2024 of Rs.6.37 Lakhs (31st March, 2023 Rs.2.99 Lakhs)
NOTE ‘23’ : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Opening stock
Finished Goods 1,752.12
Closing stock
Finished Goods 2,419.43
(667.31)
NOTE ‘24’ : EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 373.31
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Fund 4.74
Staff Welfare & Hospitality Expenses 7.00
Gratuity 15.59
400.64
NOTE ‘25’ : OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors’ Remuneration 3.00
Bad Debts -
Commission 39.67
Consumables & Stores 27.39
Discounts 23.36
Donation 0.91
Transportation Charges 9.42
Freight Charges 46.66
Insurance 23.40
Job Work Charges 27.36
Legal & Professional Fees 38.03
Miscellaneous Expenses 36.37
Motor Car Expenses 5.34
Power & Fuel 49.60
Rent, Rates & Taxes (excluding taxes on income) 224.39
Repairs & Maintenance - Machinery 2.40
Repairs & Maintenance - Other 37.47
Expenses relating to Investment Activity 20.26
Sales Promotion Expenses 54.53
Telephone & Internet Expenses 4.82
Travelling Expenses 30.66
705.04
NOTE ‘25.1° : AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Audit Fees 2.50
Tax Audit Fee 0.50
3.00

(T in lakhs)

As at

31.03.2023

3,500.15
64.71

3,564.86

119.16
51.68
37.50

5.50
6.11

219.95

1,628.84

1.752.12

(123.28)

301.13
4.99
1.99

10.81

318.92

2.00
12.91
59.74
28.41

0.04

1.00

8.60

5.77
23.80
29.31
11.96
37.73

4.09
57.41

201.39

7.54
29.07
14.93
29.18

4.77
31.83

601.48

1.80
0.20

2.00
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NOTE ‘26’ NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

(T in lakhs)
As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Sr. PARTICULARS Variance Reasons for Variance (% Change more
No. 2023-24 2022-23 (%) than 25%)
1. Current Ratio =Current Assets/Current 6.96 4.02 73.13%  The higher variance is due to increase in
Liabilities Inventory.
2. Return on Equity = Profit After Tax/ Average 1.37 0.83 65.06%  The higher variance is due to Buy Back.
Equity
3. Inventory Ratio = Net sales/Average Inventory 1.63 2.08 (21.63%) The higher variance is due to increase in
Inventory.
4.  Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio = Total 11.72 8.17 43.45%  The higher variance is due to decrease in
Sales/Average Accounts Receivables Debtors.
5.  Trade Payable Turnover Ratio = Net Credit 52.66 142.31 (63.00%) The higher variance is due to increase in
Purchases/ Average Trade Payables Trade payables.
6. Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Net Sales/ 1.29 1.76  (26.70%) Due to decrease in Sales.
Working Capital
7. Net Profit Ratio = Net Profit after Tax/Net Sales 0.12 0.09 (33.33%) Due to higher efficiency on working capital
& Consequential increase in profits
8. Return on Capital Employed = Earnings Before
Interest & Tax/Capital Employed 0.04 0.04 0.00% Not Aplicable
9. Return on Investment = Income From Investments/  0.53 0.24 120.83% Robust increase in Investment value and

Average Investments

NOTE ‘27’ NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

271

27.2

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Net Profit after tax as per statement of Profit and Loss

attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

Face Value per equity share (%)
Basic Earnings Per Share ()
Diluted Earnings per Share ()

INCOME TAX RECONCILATION
Profit before tax

Applicable Tax Rate

Computed Tax Expenses

Tax Effect of :

Income exempted from Income tax
Expenses disallowed

Ind. As Adjustment

Others

Tax in respect of earlier year
Deferred Tax

Tax Expenses
Effective Tax Rate

Profits booked due to bull market.

(% in lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
405.20 303.88
35,45,425 36,60,000
10 10

11.42 8.30
11.42 8.30
545.64 422.00
25.17% 25.17%
137.33 106.21
27.09 44 .49
(1.62) (0.51)
(26.35) (32.47)
4.37 0.40
140.82 118.12
25.81% 27.99%
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27.3

27.4

27.5

27.6

IMPORTED & INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED (% in lakhs)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
% Amount % Amount
Raw Materials
Imported 60.49 87.28 99.82 153.17
Indigenously obtained 39.51 57.00 0.18 0.28
144.28 153.45
Stores
Imported - - - -
Indigenously obtained 100.00 27.39 100.00 28.41
27.39 28.41

Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Foreign Travelling expenses

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

(i) The company has preferred appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), Mumbai against the orders
passed by Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax for the assessment year 2017-18 raising a demand of Rs.5,15,403/- .

(i)  The Company has executed Letter of Undertaking indemnifying the President of India against any liability that may
arise on account of Goods & Service Tax provisions on goods exported by it.

POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Benefits Plan

(1 Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company pays
gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

(i) Employee benefit schemes recognised in the financial statements as per actuarial valuation as on 31st March, 2024 are

asfollows :

A. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year

Current service cost

Interest Expenses

Benefit Payments from Employer

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss

Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year
B. Expenses recongised during the year

Income Statement

Current service cost

Interest Expenses

Net Cost

In Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss

C. Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate
Salary Escalation

As at 31.03.2024

Rs.

66.55
4.27
4.92

(5.61;

70.13

4.27
4.92

9.19

(5.61)

(5.61)

7.34%
5.00%

(T in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2023
Rs.

63.18
4.26
4.28

(5.17)
66.55

4.26
4.28

8.54

(5.17)
(5.17)

7.40%
5.00%
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(% in lakhs)

As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
27.7 Premise given on operating lease:

The Company has given a part of its office premises on operating lease. This lease arrangement is for a period of 5 years
and is a cancellable lease.

The total future minimum lease rentals receivable at the Balance Sheet date are as under:

Fora period not later than one year 96.47 91.88
For a period later than one year and not later than five years 271.46 367.93
For a period later than five years - -

27.8 In the opinion of the management and to the best of their knowledge, the current assets, loans & advances are
approximately of the value stated, if realised in the ordinary course of business, unless otherwise stated.

27.9 There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as at the Year ended 31.03.2024. This information, as required to be
disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined on the basis of
information available with the Company.

27.10 The Company is trying to ascertain the enterprises covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (the Act). Based on the details regarding the status of the suppliers, to the extent obtained, no
supplieris covered under the Act.

27.11 RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
a) Related parties where control exists :
i Madhu Holdings Private Limited
ii. Eternal Holdings Private Limited
iii. Elegant Financial Services LLP
iv.  Alka Granites LLP
v.  Everlasting Properties LLP
vi. Peaceful Properties LLP
vii. Everfresh Properties LLP
viii. Ware Innovations LLP
ix. Khello Khillo Design LLP
X. Midaspace Private. Itd
xi. Callido Learning Private Limited

b) Key management personnel & their relatives :
i Shri Rajesh Agrawal, Director
ii.  Shri Rakesh Agrawal, Director
iii. Ms. Yogita Agrawal, Director
iv. ~ Shri. Gautam Agrawal, son of Shri. Rakesh Agrawal
v.  Shri. R. S. Agrawal, father of Shri. Rajesh Agrawal and Shri. Rakesh Agrawal
vi. Mrs. Alka Agrawal, wife of Shri. Rajesh Agrawal
vii. Smt. Divya Agrawal, wife of Shri. Rakesh Agrawal
viii. Mrs. Madhu Agrawal, daughter of Rajesh Agrawal
ix. Shri. Mahesh Agrawal, son of Rajesh Agrawal
X.  M/s. Rakesh Agrawal, HUF
xi. M/s. Rajesh Agrawal, HUF
xii. Shri. Hitesh Kothari, Chief Financial Officer
xiii. Ms. Pooja Ponda, Company Secretary
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(% in lakhs)
As at As at
c) Transactions during the year with related parties : 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
i. Rent paid 132.00 132.00
i. Paymentto Key Managerial personnel/Relative 144.67 96.84
iii.  Director Sitting fees 2.10 1.65
iv. Purchase - 1.48
d) Disclosure in Respect of Major Related Party Transactions during the year :
i. Rent Paid
Mrs. Alka Agrawal 30.00 30.00
Mrs. Divya Agrawal 30.00 30.00
Shri Rajesh Agrawal 36.00 36.00
Shri Rakesh Agrawal 36.00 36.00
ii. Payment to Key Managerial personnel/Relative
Shri Rajesh Agrawal 40.50 30.00
Shri Rakesh Agrawal 40.50 30.00
Shri Gautam Agrawal 28.00 18.00
Shri Mahesh Agrawal 17.50 -
Shri Hitesh Kothari 10.75 11.70
Ms Arpita Doshi - 6.78
Ms. Pooja Ponda 7.42 0.37
iii. Director Sitting fees
Yogita Agrawal 0.35 0.20
Shri Raj Kumar Mittal 0.55 0.50
Shri Ram Chawla 0.55 0.50
Shri OM Prakash Singal 0.65 0.45
iv. Purchases
Ware Innovations LLP - 1.48
27.12 FAIR VALUATION MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY (% in lakhs)
. As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars
Carrying Level of Input used in Carrying Level of Input used in
amount amount
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Level1 Level2 Level 3
Financial Assets
At Amortised cost
Investments 745.76 - - - 753.51 - - -
Trade Receivable 138.22 - - - 400.67 - - -
Cash & Bank Balance 372.32 - - - 206.47 - - -
Other Financial Assets 32.78 - - - 61.33 - - -
At FVTPL
Investments 581.12 581.12 - - 27.97 27.97 - -
AT FVTOCI
Investments 8,521.82 8,521.82 - - 7,617.31 7,617.31 - -

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised cost

Trade Payable 75.02 - - - 16.49 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 58.34 - - - 62.71 - - -
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The financial instruments are categorized into two levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as
described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; and

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly
orindirectly.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that suitable sources of funding for the company’s business activities may not be available. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due, so that the company is not forced to obtain

funds at higher rates. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s cash flow position and ensure that the
Company is able to meet its financial obligation at all times including contingencies.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due causing
financial loss to the company. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial instruments and principally from credit
exposures to customers relating to outstanding receivables. The Company deals with highly rated counter parties.

27.13 Dividend

Dividends declared by the Company are based on the profit available for distribution. On May 29, 2024, the Board of
Directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend of Rs. 2.75 per share in respect of the year ended March 31,
2024 subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and if approved, would result in a cash
outflow of approximately Rs. 81.48 Lakhs.

27.14: Additional Regulatory Information

1 The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included
in Property, Plantand Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

2. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

3. The Company does not have any Capital Work-in-Progress as on the date of the Balance Sheet. The Company also
does not have any intangible asset under development.

4. The company has not made any loans or advances in the nature of loans to any promoters, directors, KMP, and its
related parties.

5. The Company is neither in possession of any benami property, nor any proceeding has been initiated or is pending
against the Company for holding any benami property.

6. The company has not been sanctioned limits against hypothecation of its current assets during the year.

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financials institution or lender during the year.

8. As per the information available with the Company, it does not have any transactions with companies which are struck
off under section 248 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 2013.

9. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

10. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, wherever required.

11. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
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entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
12. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
13. Having regard to the expert opinion obtained by the management, the provisions of Section 135 "Corporate Social
Responsibility" are not applicable on the Company.
14. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
15. The company does not have any borrowed funds or share premium.
16. The Company has not traded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
17. The Company has not recognised any prior period items in its audited annual accounts. In terms of its policy generally
followed over the years, the liability is recognised in the year of its crystalisation.
18. The company has reclassified/regrouped/rearranged the previous year figures in accordance with requirement for the
current period.
In terms of our report of even date. For & on behalf of Board of Directors
For SDBA & CO. Rajesh Agrawal
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
(FRN : 142004W)
; Hitesh Kothari Pooja Ponda
S A. Meht T )
P:?tjne;v enta Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M. No : 41287 ACS 66677
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 29" May, 2024 Date : 29" May, 2024
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ELEGANT MARBLES AND GRANI INDUSTRIES LTD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

(T in lakhs)
As at As at
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Net profit before tax and extra-ordinary items 545.66 422.00
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 50.46 29.94
Gratuity 9.19 8.54
Profit on sale of Fixed asset (1.00) (1.15)
Gain on financial assets (7.97) (6.11)
Interest / Dividend Income (155.26) (170.84)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES : 441.08 282.38
Adjustments for :
Trade receivables 282.32 6.69
Other receivables 62.78 103.22
Inventories (628.05) (162.54)
Trade and other payables (225.31) 415.10
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (67.18) 644.85
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (538.28) (145.95)
Net cash from operating activities (A) (605.46) 498.89
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (338.85) (11.66)
Sale/(Purchase) of Non-current Investments (Net) 4,362.16 (753.03)
Sales of property, plant and equipment 1.00 1.15
Interest received 80.13 51.68
Dividend received 75.14 119.16
Net cash used in investment activities (B) 4,179.58 (592.70)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : - -
Dividend Paid (120.78) (100.65)
Buyback of Equity Shares (2,683.45) -
Tax on buyback of equity shares (609.88) -
© (3,414.11) (100.65)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 160.01 (194.45)
Opening balance of Cash & cash equivalents 199.05 393.50
Closing balance of Cash & cash equivalents 359.06 199.05
(Ref. Note No.8)
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date. For & on behalf of Board of Directors
In terms of our report of even date. For & on behalf of Board of Directors
For SDBA & CO. Rajesh Agrawal
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
(FRN : 142004W)
g::ltjneeerv A. Mehta glr:fa?';i'rf:rtltiz;I]IOﬁicer ;%E%ﬁ%deacretary
M. No : 41287

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29" May, 2024

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29" May, 2024
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CIN: L14101RJ1984PLC003134
Regd. Office: E 7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road 307 026, Rajasthan.
39" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON TUESDAY, 23" JULY, 2024

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name and Address of the Shareholder

Email-Id
X Registered Folio No./DPID & Client ID :
(Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form)

No. of shares held

I certify that I am a registered Member/Proxy for the registered Member of the Company. I hereby record my presence at
the 39" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at E-7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road — 307 026,
Rajasthan on .

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of the Member/Proxy

- TEARHERE ---------ssrmmomemnnnnes

Note:
1. Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting

2. A member/proxy attending the meeting must complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance duly

: signed
X 3. Member intending to appoint a proxy should complete the Proxy Form as below and deposit it at the Company’s
. Registered Office not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited
CIN: L14101RJ1984PLC003134
Regd. Office: E 7/9, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road 307 026, Rajasthan.
39" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON
FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (s):

Registered Address :

Email Id :

Folio No./Client ID :

DPID:
I/We, being a member (s) of shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint:
1. Name: Address:

E-mail 1d: Signature or failing him/her,
2. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: Signature or failing him/her,
3. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: Signature or failing him/her,
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 39" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to
be held on at the Registered Office of the Company situated at E-7/9, RIICO
Industrial Area, Abu Road — 307 026, Rajasthan and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:

. Original
Sr. No. Resolutions
For Against
1
2
3.
4
5
Signed this day of 2024 AFFIX
REVENUE
STAMP
Signature of Sharcholder Signature of Proxy
NOTES:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly filled and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. Aproxy need not be amember of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.
3. Inthe case of jointholders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the jointholders should be stated.
4. This form of proxy will be valid only ifit is duly complete in all respects, properly stamped and submitted as per the applicable law. Incomplete form or
form which remains unstamped or inadequately stamped or form upon which the stamps have not been cancelled will be treated as invalid.
5. Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.
6. If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holdings of a member, the proxy which is dated last will be considered valid; if they are not dated or

bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple proxies will be treated as invalid.



Form No. SH-13
Nomination Form

[Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

Name of the Company : Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

Registered Address of the Company : E/79, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road - 307 026, Rajasthan
Telefax : 02224939676 Website : www.elegantmarbles.com
email:elegantmarbles@gmail.com

I/We the holder(s) of the securities, particulars of which are given hereunder, wish to make
nomination and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of
my/our death.

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made):

Nature of Folio No. No. of Certificate No. Distinctive No.
Securities Securities

(2) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S -
(a) Name:
(b) Date of Birth :
(c) Father's / Mother's / Spouse's Name:
(d) Occupation:
(e) Nationality :
(f) Address:
(g) Email ID & Telephone No.:
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):

(3) IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR -
(a) Date of Birth:
(b) Date of attanining majority:
(c) Name of guardian:
(d) Address of guardian:

(4) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY-
(a) Name:
(b) Date of Birth:
(c) Father's/Mother/s/Spouse's Name:
(d) Occupation:
(e) Nationality:
(f) Address:
(g) E-mail Id & Telephone No.:
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):

(1) Relationship with the minor nominee:

Name(s) and Address of Security holder(s) Signature(s)

Name and Address of Witness .
Signature



Form No. SH-14

Cancellation or Variation of Nomination

[Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

Name of the Company : Elegant Marbles and Grani Industries Limited

Registered Address of the Company : E/79, RIICO Industrial Area, Abu Road - 307 026, Rajasthan
Telefax : 02224939676 Website : www.elegantmarbles.com
email:elegantmarbles@gmail.com

I/We hereby cancel the nomination(s) made by me/us in favour of (name (s) and address of the
nominee) in respect of the below mentioned securities.

OR
I/We hereby nominate the following person in place of as nominee in respect of the below

mentioned securities in whom shall vest all rights in respect of such securities in the event of my/our death.

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made):

Nature of Folio No. No. of Certificate No. Distinctive No.
Securities Securities

(2) (a) PARTICULARS OF NEW NOMINEE/S -
i) Name:
ii) Date of Birth :
iii) Father's / Mother's / Spouse's Name:
iv) Occupation:
v) Nationality :
vi) Address:
vii) Email ID & Telephone No.:
viii) Relationship with the security holder(s):

(b) IN CASE NEW NOMINEE IS A MINOR -
i) Date of Birth:
ii) Date of attaining majority:
iii) Name of guardian:

iv) Address of guardian:

(3) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY-
(a) Name:
(b) Date of Birth:
(c) Father's/Mother/s/Spouse's Name:
(d) Occupation:
(e) Nationality:
(f) Address:
(g) E-mail Id & Telephone No.:
(h) Relationship with the security holder(s):

(1) Relationship with the minor nominee:

Name(s) and Address of Security holder(s) Signature(s)

Name and Address of Witness Signature
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